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Yea & District Memorial Hospital  
Annual Report 2014/15

Mission
To provide coordinated services which 
enhance the health and well-being of 
the community.

Vision
Our vision is to be a responsive, 
relevant and holistic health service.

Objectives
• To provide the persons, entitled 

under the Act, medical care, nursing 
assistance and/or other support

• To aid persons affected by disease 
or injured as a result of accident

• To provide facilities for the 
treatment of both public and private 
patients as required

• To provide specific services that 
meet the needs of the frail, aged 
and disabled persons in our 
community

Values
• Integrity

• Respect

• Accountability

• Responsiveness

• Impartiality
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RELEVANT MINISTER
The responsible Ministers during the reporting period were: 

The Honourable Jill Hennessy MLA, Minster for Health  
4 December 2014 to 30 June 2015. 

Martin Foley MLA, Minister for Mental Health  
4 December 2014 to 30 June 2015. 

Martin Foley, MLA, Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing  
4 December 2014 to 30 June 2015. 

The Honourable David Davis MLC, Minister for Health, Minister 
for Ageing - 1 July 2014 to 3 December 2014. 

The Honourable Mary Wooldridge MLA, Minister for Mental 
Health - 1 July 2014 to 3 December 2014. 

The Honourable Mary Wooldridge MLA, Minister for 
Community Services - 1 July 2014 to 3 December 2014. 

The Honourable Mary Wooldridge MLA, Minister for Disability 
Services and Reform - 1 July 2014 to 3 December 2014. 
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INTRODUCTION
In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, I am 
pleased to present the Report of Operations for the Yea & 
District Memorial Hospital for the year ended 30 June 2015.

Kirstin Michaels 
Board Chair 
17 July 2015

ANNUAL REPORTING
Yea & District Memorial Hospital reports on its annual 
performance in two separate documents.  This Annual 
Financial and Performance Report fulfils the statutory 
reporting requirements to Government by way of an Annual 
Report and the Quality of Care Report reports on quality, 
risk management and performance improvement matters.  
Both documents are presented to the Annual General 
Meeting and then distributed to the community.
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About Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital 
Established under the Health Services Act 1988, 
Yea & District Memorial Hospital is a rural health 
provider for the community of Yea and its 
surrounding communities.

Yea & District Memorial Hospital has a broad 
community reach, servicing a population of more 
than 6,892 from the communities of Yea, Glenburn, 
Kinglake, Flowerdale and their surrounds.

The objectives, function, power and duties of 
Yea & District Memorial Hospital are described 
in the operation practices and by-laws of the 
organisation.

The hospital comprises four key areas including 
acute, district nursing, residential aged care and 
community health. 

The acute area has 10 beds and an urgent care 
centre. 

Rosebank Nursing Home and Rosebank Hostel 
provide the residential aged care service. The 
nursing home has 10 beds and the hostel has  
15 beds. 

The hospital provides community health services 
to the west side of Murrindindi Shire. Housed 
in The Grace Bennetts Centre, Yea Community 
Health has a range of services available by a 
diabetes educator, dietician, counsellor and 
community health and wellbeing development 
officer. There is also a paediatric speech 
pathologist and counsellor available in Kinglake. 

The hospital also facilitates provision of 
services in podiatry, audiology, physiotherapy, 
pathology collection, sonography, optometry, 
echocardiography and psychology.
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Board Chair  
Report
The 2014/15 financial year, has seen many achievements 
across the organisation.  The highlight for the year 
was the successful organisational result following 
the Australia Council of Healthcare Services survey 
against the National Safety and Quality Health Service 
Standards in February, where the hospital was found to 
exceed the requirements in the Standard “Partnering 
with Consumers” and was elevated to the level “Met 
with Merit” in two areas of this standard. We were 
thrilled with this finding and we believe that it fairly 
reflects the relationship we have with our community. 
The  Australian Aged Care Standards Agency surveyed  
both the Nursing Home and Hostel in May, where both 
areas were found to be fully compliant in all areas.  The 
successful accreditation outcomes highlights that Yea 
& District Memorial Hospital is an organisation focused 
on safety and quality for our patients and residents.

Yea & District Memorial Hospital enjoyed a strong year 
financially, finishing with an operating cash surplus and 
a strong balance sheet.  

Highlights
In collaboration with Yea High School and Berry Street 
the book “What Gets Us Through Hard Times” was 
launched at the Yea Library in October 2014.  The book 
was initially developed with student counsellors from 
LaTrobe University and the 5 ( then year 9-10) boys as 
part of understanding the boys’ learnings and reflections 
in the post- bushfire environment.The book has been 
distributed to local schools, the Yea Community House, 
the Yea Police Station and the Yea Library. 

We continue to upgrade our equipment and 
modernise our facilities and explore ways in which the 
services provided could be further expanded to the 
benefit of our community.  Works undertaken were 
resurfacing the carparks in front of the hospital, and the 
Miller Street entrance to The Grace Bennetts Centre.  
We received funding of $10,000 from the Department 
of Health and Human Services for purchase of specialist 
care equipment for our Nursing Home,$3,500 for 
therapeutic dementia aids and resources and $4,300 

for training for nursing staff in comprehensive health 
assessment of the older person Department of 
Health and Human Services also provided $2,500 for 
minor capital expenditure and $2,358 to support the 
purchase of a satellite phone or sleeve to facilitate 
communication in emergency situations.

Yea & District Memorial Hospital has been a beneficiary 
of the Miss Mildred Nora Young Perpetual Charitable 
Trust for many years  and in conjunction with her family 
a more permanent memorial plaque was placed in the 
gardens to acknowledge this ongoing contribution.

Our Scholarship Program was established in 2012 to 
support candidates from the Shire of Murrindindi who 
require financial assistance for expenses in relation to 
completing tertiary studies in an accreditated medical, 
nursing or health science discipline. Three scholarships 
were awarded this year to local residents Margaret 
Sutcliffe (Nursing), Alison Heard (Nursing) and Chelsea 
Spagnolo (Osteopathy)

The organisation also awarded a life governor award 
to Mrs Ruth Crockett, Ruth has had a long association 
over 30 years with the hospital both as an  employee 
and board member of the Rosebank Committee of 
Management and the Board of Management of Yea & 
District Memorial Hospital. 

Thanks must be paid to the ongoing  support that 
the organisation has received from many generous 
volunteers and donors, who selflessly give to Yea & 
District Memorial Hospital.  

The Board composition also changed with Kim 
Chadband resigning in November and at the end of 
the year, Ms Sue Neill resigning. Both Kim and Sue have 
made considerable contributions and leave with many 
achievements.

Finally, we would like to thank our Board members, 
leadership team, Department of Health and Human 
Services and most importantly, our staff.

Kristin Michaels 
Board Chair
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Board and 
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Board 
of Management
Board Chair 

Kristin Michaels
Appointed: July 2010 
Term Expires: 30 June 2017

Committees:
• Audit Committee
• Patient Care Review Committee (Chair)

Vice Chair 

Sue Neill
Appointed: July 2009 
Sue resigned in May 2015

Committees:
• Audit Committee

Karl Anderson
Appointed: July 2011 
Term Expires: 30 June 2017
Committees:

• Audit Committee (Chair)

Kim Chadband
Appointed: March 2009 
Kim resigned in September 2014
Committees:

• Audit Committee

Lyn Southurst
Appointed: July 2011 
Term Expires: 30 June 2017
Committees:

• Audit Committee

Gary Charles
Appointed: July 2011 
Term Expires: 30 June 2017
Committees:

• Audit Committee
• Patient Care Review Committee

Jennifer Keast
Appointed: July 2014 
Term Expires: 30 June 2016

• Committees:
• Audit Committee

Christine Kellett
Appointed: July 2014 
Term Expires: 30 June 2016
Committees:

• Audit Committee
• Patient Care Review Committee
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Leadership 
Team
Chief Executive Officer
Mr Dale Fraser 
MBA, FCPA, B. Bus, FHSM

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible 
to the Board of Management for the efficient 
and effective management of Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital. Prime responsibilities include 
the development and implementation of 
operational and strategic planning, maximising 
service efficiency and quality improvement, and 
minimising risk. Dale Fraser is also the CEO for  
GV Health and Nathalia District Hospital.

Executive Director Innovation & 
Performance / Chief Nursing and 
Midwifery Officer 

Ms Fiona Brew 
RN, Perioperative Cert., Grad Dip Acute Care, 
MBA, MACN, GAICD

At Yea & District Memorial Hospital the Executive 
Director Innovation and Performance and Chief 
Nurse and Midwifery Officer prime responsibilities 
include the development and implementation of 
operational and strategic planning, maximising 
service efficiency and quality improvement, and 
minimising risk.

Chief Finance Officer
Mr Bill Morfis 
BHA (UNSW), MCom (UNSW), CPA

The Chief Finance Officer role has the 
responsibility for the financial management 
and reporting requirements to the Board of 
Management, Manager and external bodies 
including the Department of Health and Human 
Services. 

Director of Nursing / Manager
Ms. Lorina Gray 
RN, BHA, GDCH, AFCHSE, CHE

The Director of Nursing/Manager is responsible 
for the management of all clinical and non-
clinical services within the organisation. This 
includes Nursing, Residential Aged Care, 
Community Health, Hotel Services, Clerical 
Services, Maintenance, Allied Health Services, 
Student Placements and Volunteers. Lorina 
also oversees the operational management 
of Quality Improvement, Risk Management, 
Occupational Health and Safety, Infection Control, 
and  Complaints Management and Freedom of 
Information requests.

Director of Medical Services
Dr Richard (Rick) Lowen 
MBBS, DipObsRCOG, FRACGP, AFCHSE CHE

The Director of Medical Services provides clinical 
advice to the organisation, contributes to Patient 
Care Review meetings and supports Yea’s Visiting 
Medical Officers. He attends the Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital monthly, during which time he 
attends Medical Staff Group meetings, reviews 
clinical policies of the Hospital, provides advice 
and support to the Director of Nursing/Manager 
and staff and responds to day to day operational 
issues of medical importance.
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Organisational  
Structure

GV Health 
Executive 
Director 

Innovation &  
Performance

GV Health 
Chief 

Finance 
Officer

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Yea & District Memorial Hospital

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR OF NURSING/MANAGER

Quality & Risk Management

Nursing Services

Hotel Services

Aged Care Services

Occupational Health & Safety

Clerical Services

Maintenance Services

Infection Control

Volunteers/Students

Onsite Director of 
Medical Services

Community Health
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Administration 
& Clerical 2.73

 
Workforce

Labour Category JUNE Current Month FTE JUNE YTD FTE

2014 2015 2014 2015

Nursing 22.50 23.28 22.17 23.32

Administration and Clerical 2.79 3.18 2.49 2.73

Medical Support 0.63 0.63 0.49 0.64

Hotel and Allied Services 12.40 12.28 12.09 12.52

Sessional Clinicians 0.00 0.05 0.04 0.04

Ancillary Staff (Allied Health) 1.11 1.20 1.22 1.07

Total 39.43 40.62 38.50 40.32

Merit & Equity Principles
Yea & District Memorial Hospital is committed to applying merit and equity principles when appointing 
staff. The selection processes ensure that applicants are assessed and evaluated fairly and equitably on 
the basis of the key selection criteria and other accountabilities without discrimination.

Code of Conduct
All Yea & District Memorial Hospital staff are required to abide by the Code of Conduct, which is based 
on the Code of Conduct for Victorian Public Sector Employees.

Nursing 23.32

Hotel & Allied Health 
Services 12.52

Ancillary Staff (Allied Health) 1.07

Medical Support 0.64

Sessional Clinicians 0.04
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Key 
Highlights
New Initiatives
National Standards
There was significant staff commitment to the 
preparation for the new national standards. We 
met all 10 standards which included a total of 209 
core actions and 47 developmental standards 
which also required demonstrated progress. The 
hospital also achieved a met with merit for two 
core actions relating to partnering with consumers.

Residential Aged Care
All 44 standards were met in both Rosebank 
Hostel and Rosebank Nursing Home.

Scholarship Program 
We continue to provide support for local residents 
in Yea and Murrindindi Shire who are currently 
enrolled in an accredited tertiary medical, nursing 
or health science course an opportunity to apply 
for a scholarship.

This year three scholarships were awarded 
Margaret Sutcliffe, Alison Heard and Chelsea 
Spagnolo.
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Consultancies
In 2014/15 there were zero consultancies where 
the total fees payable to the consultancies were 
$10,000 or greater. There were zero consultancies 
were the total fees payable to the consultants were 
less than $10,000. The total expenditure incurred 
during 2014/15 was zero.

Government Expenditure
There was zero expenditure spent on government 
advertising during 2014/2015.

Occupational Health and Safety
During this financial year, the OH&S department 
has concentrated on raising awareness, 
management and accountability of OH&S systems 
to meet the requirements of the Occupational 
Health & Safety Act 2004.

During the 2014/15 year our priorities were:

• Enhancing and extending processes to 
monitor organisational compliance of OH&S 
performance

• Ensuring processes are in place to identify 
changes in occupational health and safety 

• Ensuring that consistent and legally 
compliant hazard controls and risk 
mitigation strategies are applied

In 2014/15 Yea & District Memorial Hospital 
continued to adopt a proactive approach to 
managing workplace injuries and improving the 
health and safety of the workplace.  

During the 2014/15 financial year, one work injury 
was recorded with 53 lost days.

Code Grey Implementation
Yea & District Memorial Hospital was successful 
in achieving $10,000 of funding to implement 
resources and training support to introduce Code 
Grey. Code Grey is an internal emergency response 
activated across the health service when there is 
an actual or potential situation of aggression or 
violence that is unarmed.  The financial support 
has aided the development of policies and 
procedures, staff training, organisational review 
and preventative measures in an aim to avoid 
situations of violence or aggression. 

Statutory 
Requirements
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Statutory Requirements (continued)

Compliance with Building Act
Yea & District Memorial Hospital remains 
compliance with the building and maintance 
provisions of the Building Act 1993 – Guidelines 
issues by the Minister for publicly owned buildings.

During 2014/15, the following have been 
undertaken: Regulation 1209 & 1215 – Annual 
Essential Safety Measures Reports.

Occupancy Permits and Certificates of Final 
Inspection.
Yea & District Memorial Hospital Occupancy 
Permits and Certificates of Final Inspection are all 
current.

Building Works
No new Occupancy Permits and Certificates of 
Final Inspection were issued.

Essential Safety Measures
We comply with building standards and 
regulations, with all works completed in 2014-15 
according to the Building Act 1993, the Building 
Code of Australia, Standard for Publicly Owned 
Buildings 1994 and relevant statutory regulations.

All essential safety measures have been 
maintained, so far as is practicable, in accordance 
with the Building Regulations 2006 as is recorded 
in the Annual Essential Safety Measures Report. 
Essential Safety Measures Reports are prepared 
annually for properties owned by Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital to confirm that all of the 
essential safety services are operating as required.

We ensure works are inspected by independent 
building surveyors and maintain a register of 
building surveyors, as well as the jobs they have 
certified and for which occupancy certificates have 
been issued 

Fire Audit Compliance 
The Yea & District Memorial Hospital Fire Audit is 
current.

Freedom of Information
The Victorian Freedom of Information Act 1982 
provides individuals with the opportunity for 
consumers to access personal documents held by 
public hospitals and other government agencies. 
The designated Freedom of Information Officer who 
manages applications at Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital is Chief Executive Officer, Mr Dale Fraser. 

Under the legislation, all public entities in Victoria 
must submit an annual return to the Department 
of Justice regarding Freedom of Information 
activity. Application fees and access charges 
applied in regard to Freedom of Information are 
done so in accordance with State Government 
regulations. In 2014/15 the application fee at 
Yea & District Memorial Hospital was $29.50 per 
application plus photocopying charges. In 2014/15 
there was one application.

Protected Disclosure
We comply with the requirements of the Victorian 
Government’s Protected Disclosure Act 2012. 
Neither improper conduct nor the taking of 
reprisals against anyone who comes forward to 
disclose such conduct is acceptable to us. We 
distinguish protected disclosures from something 
that would be considered a grievance or internal 
organisational dispute. Zero disclosures as per the 
Protected Disclosure Act 2012 were made in the 
year ended 30 June 2015.

Privacy
We respect the private information that staff, 
patients and clients entrust to us and are 
committed to protecting it. We are bound by a 
strict code of confidentiality and comply with all 
legislation related to privacy and confidentiality, 
including the following Victorian Acts:

• Health Services Act 1988

• Information Privacy Act 2000

• Health Records Act 2001
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Carers Recognition
The Carers Recognition Act 2012 formally 
acknowledges the important contribution that 
people in a care relationship make to our community 
and the unique knowledge that carers hold of the 
person in their care. The value role of the carer 
has been actively integrated in the policies and 
procedures of Yea & District Memorial Hospital.

Competitive Neutrality
We are committed to ensuring that our services 
demonstrate both quality and efficiency. Competitive 
neutrality, which supports the Commonwealth 
Government’s national competition policy, helps 
to ensure that net competitive advantages which 
accrue to a government business are offset. We 
understand the requirements of competitive 
neutrality and act accordingly. We support the 
principles of the Partnerships Victoria policy, which 
relates to responsible expenditure and infrastructure 
projects, and the creation of effective partnerships 
between private enterprise and the public sector.

Victorian Industry Participation Policy
We are committed to ensuring that our participation 
with Victorian industry is maximised and delivers the 
highest level of performance for each dollar expended. 
There were no procurements or projects above $1 
million for the 2014/15 year, in accordance with the 
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003.

Environmental Report
Yea & District Memorial Hospital continues to look 
for opportunities to improve the organisation’s 
environmental performance.  Recent environmental 
initiatives include:
Replacing standard fluorescent strip lighting with 
energy efficient LED lights in all hallways of The Grace 
Bennetts Centre to reduce energy consumption and 
improve brightness of the hallways.
Improving the overall recycling capacity of the 
organisation by consolidating all small residential 
recycling bins into one dedicated recycling skip bin, 
with access to this skip restricted to nominated staff 
to reduce contamination of recycling material by 
general waste. A workspace audit was undertaken 
to identify areas where recycling could be increased.  
Additional personal recycling bins are to be 
distributed to key areas. 
Yea & District Memorial Hospital continues to 
maintain a small fleet of four cylinder cars.  Car 
pooling is encouraged for work related activities 
and staff are encouraged to utilise videoconference 
facilities where appropriate.   

Additional information 
Consistent with FRD 22F (Section 6.18) the Report 
of Operations should confirm that details in respect 
of the items listed below have been retained by Yea 
& District Memorial Hospital and are available to 
the relevant Ministers, Members of Parliament and 
the public on request (subject to the freedom of 
information requirements, if applicable):

a. Declarations of pecuniary interests have been 
duly completed by all relevant officers

b. Details of shares held by senior officers as 
nominee or held beneficially;

c. Details of publications produced by the entity 
about itself, and how these can be obtained

d. Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates 
and levies charged by the Health Service;

e. Details of any major external reviews carried out 
on the Health Service;

f. Details of major research and development 
activities undertaken by the Health Service 
that are not otherwise covered either in the 
Report of Operations or in a document that 
contains the financial statements and Report of 
Operations;

g. Details of overseas visits undertaken including 
a summary of the objectives and outcomes of 
each visit;

h. Details of major promotional, public relations and 
marketing activities undertaken by the Health 
Service to develop community awareness of the 
Health Service and its services;

i. Details of assessments and measures 
undertaken to improve the occupational health 
and safety of employees;

j. General statement on industrial relations 
within the Health Service and details of time 
lost through industrial accidents and disputes, 
which is not otherwise detailed in the Report of 
Operations; 

k. A list of major committees sponsored by the 
Health Service, the purposes of each committee 
and the extent to which those purposes have 
been achieved;

l. Details of all consultancies and contractors 
including consultants/contractors engaged, 
services provided, and expenditure committed 
for each engagement.



Priority Action Deliverable Outcome

Developing a 
system that is 
responsive to 
people’s needs

•	 Develop an organisational 
policy for the provision of 
safe, high quality end of life 
care in acute and subacute 
settings, with clear guidance 
about the role of, and 
access to, specialist palliative 
care.

•	 Develop a policy on end of 
life care applicable to each 
clinical care area of Yea and 
District Memorial Hospital 
and ensure it is embedded 
into clinical practice. 

Achieved

•	 Implement formal advance 
care planning structures 
and processes, including 
putting into place a 
system for preparing 
and/or receiving, and 
documenting advance 
care plans in partnership 
with patients, carers and 
substitute decision makers.

•	 Develop and Implement 
Advanced Care Planning 
systems across Yea and 
District Memorial Hospital

In progress and 
on-going

•	 In partnership with 
others, participate in 
community education and 
engagement about having 
the conversation about 
advanced care planning. 

Achieved

Improving 
every Victorian’s 
health status 
and experiences

•	 Use consumer feedback 
to improve person and 
family centred care, health 
service practice and patient 
experience.

•	 Implement a project that 
showcases health service 
changes initiated by 
consumer feedback.

Achieved

•	 Improve health literacy and 
support informed choice 
and shared decision-
making by responding 
to the health information 
needs of service users.

•	 Include consumers in a 
review of all consumer 
forms used across Yea and 
District Memorial Hospital

Achieved ‘Met 
with Merit’ at 
ACHS survey

Part A -  
Statement of Priorities
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Priority Action Deliverable Outcome

Expanding 
service, 
workforce and 
system capacity

•	 Develop and implement 
a workforce immunisation 
plan that includes pre-
employment screening and 
immunisation assessment 
for existing staff that work 
in high risk areas in order 
to align with Australian 
infection control and 
immunisation guidelines.

•	 Implement a staff 
immunisation register that 
reflects the guidelines 
and ensure new and 
existing staff have their 
immunisation status 
recorded

Achieved

•	 Build workforce capability 
and sustainability by 
supporting formal and 
informal clinical education 
and training for staff 
and health students, in 
particular inter-professional 
learning.

•	 Implement the Victorian 
Regional Health Service 
eLearning Network 
(ReHSeN) training system 
into Yea and District 
Memorial Hospital with 
further education provided 
in-house both formally and 
informally to meet clinical 
education needs

Achieved

Increasing 
the system’s 
financial 
sustainability 
and productivity

•	 Identify and implement 
practice change to enhance 
asset management.

•	 Improve utilisation 
of the Basic Asset 
Management Program 
(BAMP) to enhance asset 
management at Yea and 
District Memorial Hospital.

Commenced

Implementing 
continuous 
improvements 
and innovation

•	 Drive improved health 
outcomes through a 
strong focus on patient-
centred care in the 
planning, delivery and 
evaluation of services, 
and the development of 
new models for putting 
patients first.

•	 Identify and undertake 
quality improvement 
activities in line with 
meeting new quality and 
accreditation standards 

Achieve full 
accreditation 
including 
elevation of 
2 areas in 
Standard 2 to 
‘Met with Merit’
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Priority Action Deliverable Outcome

Increasing 
accountability 
and 
transparency

•	 Undertake an annual board 
assessment to identify and 
develop board capability to 
ensure all board members 
are well equipped to 
effectively discharge their 
responsibilities.

•	 Annual Board assessment 
conducted and report 
evaluated and appropriate 
actions undertaken as 
required

Achieved

•	 Demonstrate a strategic 
focus and commitment to 
aged care by responding to 
community need as well as 
the Commonwealth Living 
Longer Living Better reforms. 

•	 Review, implement and 
evaluate implementation 
of the Living Longer, Living 
Better reforms into Yea and 
District Memorial Hospital.

Achieved

Improving 
utilisation of  
e-health and 
communications 
technology.

•	 Utilise telehealth to 
better connect service 
providers and consumers 
to appropriate and timely 
services.

•	 Participate in the Hume 
Region telehealth project 
as it rolls out across Hume 
region, ensuring staff are 
adequately trained in 
processes with the required 
systems in place

In progress

•	 Ensure local ICT strategic 
plans are in place.

•	 Update IT strategic plan 
between the service 
provider Hume Region 
Health Alliance and Yea 
and District Memorial 
Hospital.

In progress

Statement of Priorities (continued)
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Financial Sustainability Performance
Key Performance Indicator Target 2014-15 Actual

Finance

Annual operating result ($m) 0.10 0.10

Creditors <60 days 38 days

Debtors <60 days 60 days

Asset Managment

Basic asset management plan Full compliance Full compliance

Safety and Quality Performance
Key Performance Indicator Target 2014-15 Actual

Patient Experience and Outcomes

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey Full compliance Full compliance

Governance, Leadership and Culture

People Matter Survey Patient Safety Culture Full compliance Full compliance

Safety and Quality

Health service accreditation Full compliance Full compliance

Residential aged care accreditation Full compliance Full compliance

Cleaning standards (overall) Full compliance Full compliance

Cleaning Standards (AQL-A) 90 Achieved

Cleaning Standards (AQL-B) 85 Achieved

Cleaning Standards (AQL-C) 85 Achieved

Submission of data to VICNISS Full compliance Full compliance

Hand Hygiene program Quarter 2 75 93

Hand Hygiene program Quarter 3 77 95

Hand Hygiene program Quarter 4 80 92

Healthcare worker immunisation - influenza 75 77.2

Part B -  
Performance Priorities
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Primary Health Care
Service Activity levels by hours of service

Community Health Nursing 272.75

Dietetics 1296.28

Counselling 626.37

Speech Pathology 457.41

Intake Worker 109.49

Health & Wellbeing Development Officer 868

Flexible Aged Care Places
Residential Aged Care Services (PSRACS)

Campus Number Occupancy level %

High Care 10 96.38%

Low Care 15 96.97%

Acute
Service  Type of activity Activity levels 

Medical Inpatients Bed days 1834

Urgent Care Presentations 278

Nursing Home Type Patients Bed days 331

Non-admitted Patients Occasions of service 386

District Nursing Occasions of service 1508
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ATTESTATION OF DATA INTEGRITY
I, Dale Fraser, certify that Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital has put in place appropriate internal 
controls and processes to ensure that reported 
data reasonably reflects actual performance. Yea 
& District Memorial Hospital has critically reviewed 
these controls and processes during the year. 

Dale Fraser
Chief Executive Officer 
17 July 2015

ATTESTATION FOR COMPLIANCE 
WITH THE MINISTERIAL STANDING 
DIRECTION 4.5.5.1 - INSURANCE
I, Dale Fraser, certify that Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital has complied with Ministerial Direction 
4.5.5.1 - Insurance.

Dale Fraser
Chief Executive Officer 
17 July 2015

ATTESTATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH 
AUSTRALIAN/NEW ZEALAND RISK 
MANAGEMENT STANDARD
I, Dale Fraser certify that the Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital has risk management 
processes in place consistent with the AS/NZS ISO 
31000:2009 (or an equivalent designated standard) 
and an internal control system is in place that 
enables the executive to understand, manage 
and satisfactorily control risk exposures. The Chief 
Executive Officer verifies this assurance and that 
the risk profile of the Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital has been critically reviewed within the last 
12 months. 

Dale Fraser
Chief Executive Officer 
17 July 2015
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Financial Analysis of Operating  
Revenues and Expenses

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Revenue 5,365,674 5,077,963 4,924,146 4,884,953 4,753,125

Total Expenses 5,664,442 5,249,554 5,064,046 5,015,440 4,915,345

Net Result for the year  
(Incl. Capital & Specific Items)   (298,768)  (171,591) (139,900)   (130,487) (162,220)

Retained Surplus/ 
(Accumulated Deficit) 479,569 974,980 1,333,559 1,692,817 2,089,169

Total Assets 16,913,731 16,367,292 14,814,541 15,359,110 15,351,065
Total Liabilities 3,517,622 2,672,415 2,373,774 2,778,443 2,639,911
Net Assets 13,396,109 13,694,877 12,440,767 12,580,667 12,711,154

Total Equity 13,396,109 13,694,877 12,440,767 12,580,667 12,711,154

Five Year Financial Summary
For The Year Ended 30 June 2015 

Significant Changes in 
Financial Position
There were no significant changes in financial 
position.

Events Subsequent to Balance 
Date
There have been no events subsequent to 
balance date that will have a significant effect on 
the operations.

Operational & Budgetary 
Objectives & Factors Affecting 
Performance
The Board budgeted for a surplus financial 
position before capital items and depreciation 
for the 2014/15 year and the final result for the 
year was a surplus of $95,979. The major factors 
contributing to the surplus for the year were DVA 
Acute WIES revenue, private patient revenue and 
Commonwealth Residential Aged Care Subsidies 
exceeding target.
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Disclosure Index
The annual report of the Yea & District Memorial Hospital is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation. This 
index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

Legislation Requirement Page Reference

Ministerial Directions
Report of Operations
Charter and purpose
FRD 22F Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers 4
FRD 22F Purpose, functions, powers and duties 4
FRD 22F Initiatives and key achievements 12
FRD 22F Nature and range of services provided 4

Management and structure
FRD 22F Organisational structure 10

Financial and other information
FRD 10 Disclosure index 24
FRD 11A Disclosure of ex-gratia expenses N/A
FRD 12A Disclosure of major contracts 13
FRD 21B Responsible person and executive officer disclosures 74, 75
FRD 22F Application and operation of Protected Disclosure 2012 14
FRD 22F Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012 15
FRD 22F Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982 14
FRD 22F Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993 14
FRD 22F Details of consultancies over $10,000 13
FRD 22F Details of consultancies under $10,000 13
FRD 22F Employment and conduct principles 11
FRD 22F Major changes or factors affecting performance 23
FRD 22F Occupational health and safety 13
FRD 22F Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives 23
FRD 24C Reporting of office-based environmental impacts 15
FRD 22F Significant changes in financial position during the year 23
FRD 22F Statement on National Competition Policy 15
FRD 22F Subsequent events 23
FRD 22F Summary of the financial results for the year 23
FRD 22F Workforce Data Disclosures including a statement on the application of employment and 

conduct principles 
11

FRD 25B Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures 15
FRD 29A Workforce Data disclosures 11
SD 4.2(g) Specific information requirements 33
SD 4.2( j) Sign-off requirements 28
SD 3.4.13 Attestation on data integrity 22
SD 4.5.5.1 Ministerial Standing Direction 4.5.5.1 compliance attestation 22
SD 4.5.5 Risk management compliance attestation 22
Financial Statements 
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA
SD 4.2(a) Statement of changes in equity 32
SD 4.2(b) Comprehensive operating statement 29
SD 4.2(b) Balance sheet 30
SD 4.2(b) Cash flow statement 31

Other requirements under Standing Directions 4.2
SD 4.2(a) Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative pronouncements 33
SD 4.2(c) Accountable officer’s declaration 28
SD 4.2(c) Compliance with Ministerial Directions 33
SD 4.2(d) Rounding of amounts 36

Legislation
Freedom of Information Act 1982 14
Protected Disclosure Act 2012 14
Carers Recognition Act 2012 15
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 15
Building Act 1993 14
Financial Management Act 1994 3
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Yea & District Memorial Hospital
Board member’s, accountable 
officer’s and chief finance & 

accounting officer’s declaration

The attached financial statements for Yea & District Memorial Hospital have been 
prepared in accordance with Standing Directions 4.2 of the Financial Management 
Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting 
Standards including Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive 
operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow 
statement and accompanying notes, presents fairly the financial transactions 
during the year ended 30 June 2015 and the financial position of Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital at 30 June 2015.

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render 
any particulars included in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day.

Kristin Michaels
Chairperson

Shepparton
31 August 2015

Dale Fraser
Accountable Officer

Shepparton
31 August 2015

Bill Morfis
Chief Finance & Accounting Officer

Shepparton
31 August 2015
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Kristin Michaels
Chairperson

Shepparton
31 August 2015

Dale Fraser
Accountable Officer

Shepparton
31 August 2015

Bill Morfis
Chief Finance & Accounting Officer

Shepparton
31 August 2015

Yea & District Memorial Hospital
Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note

Total
2015

$

Total
2014

$

Revenue From Operating Activities 2  4,982,445  4,674,564 
Revenue From Non-Operating Activities 2 196,643 186,988 
Employee Expenses 3 (3,565,067) (3,272,748)
Non Salary Labour Costs 3    (194,305)    (181,399)
Supplies and Consumables 3    (321,443)    (288,438)
Other Expenses 3 (1,002,294)    (873,644)
Net Result Before Capital & Specific Items 95,979 245,323 

Capital Purpose Income 2 186,586 216,411 
Depreciation 4    (568,674)    (622,470)
Expenditure for Capital Purposes 3 (12,659) (10,855)
Net Result for the Year    (298,768)    (171,591)

Other Comprehensive Income Items that  will not be
reclassified to Net Result

Changes in Physical Asset Revaluation Surplus 13   -    1,425,700 
  -    1,425,700 

Comprehensive Result For The Year    (298,768)  1,254,109 

This statement should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes
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Yea & District Memorial Hospital
Balance Sheet
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note

Total
2015

$

Total
2014

$
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 5  6,649,973  5,573,854 
Receivables 6 161,804 272,158 
Other Assets 7   66,949   91,600 
Total Current Assets  6,878,726  5,937,612 

Non Current Assets
Receivables 6 109,400   38,388 
Property, Plant & Equipment 8  9,925,605    10,391,292 
Total Non Current Assets 10,035,005 10,429,680 

TOTAL ASSETS 16,913,731 16,367,292 

Current Liabilities
Payables 9 200,868 303,297 
Provisions 10 827,210 760,160 
Other Liabilities 12  2,296,762  1,518,897 
Total Current Liabilities  3,324,840  2,582,354 

Non Current Liabilities
Provisions 10 192,782   90,061 
Total Non Current Liabilities 192,782   90,061 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  3,517,622  2,672,415 

NET ASSETS 13,396,109 13,694,877 

EQUITY
Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus 13a  6,947,166  6,947,166 
General Purpose Surplus 13a  3,476,449  3,279,806 
Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus 13a   45,478   45,478 
Contributed Capital 13b  2,447,447  2,447,447 
Accumulated Surpluses 13c 479,569 974,980 
TOTAL EQUITY 13,396,109 13,694,877 

Commitments 16
Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities 17

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Yea & District Memorial Hospital
Cash Flow Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note

Total
2015

$

Total
2014

$

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating Grants from Government 4,099,229 3,780,757 
Patient and Resident Fees Received 706,450 680,703 
Interest Received 244,431 188,919 
Other Receipts 125,341 124,294 
Total Receipts 5,175,451 4,774,673 
Employee Expenses Paid (3,390,775) (3,200,081)
Non Salary Labour Costs   (213,736)   (199,539)
Payments for Supplies, Consumables and Services (1,345,843) (1,060,133)
GST Received from ATO 112,293  89,003 
Total Payments (4,838,061) (4,370,750)
Cash Generated from Operations 337,390 403,923 

Capital Grants from Government  35,082  25,500 
Capital Donations Received  35,090 108,739 
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities 14 407,562 538,162 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for Non-Financial Assets   (102,987)   (123,406)
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities   (102,987)   (123,406)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents Held 304,575 414,761 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Financial Year 4,064,913 3,650,152 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of Financial Year 5 4,369,488 4,064,913 

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Nathalia District Hospital
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015

Property, 
Plant

& 
Equipment

Revaluation
Surplus

General
Purpose
Surplus

Restricted
Specific
Purpose
Surplus

Contributed 
Capital

Accumulated
Surpluses/

(Deficits) Total
Note $ $ $ $ $ $

Balance at  
1 July 2013 5,521,466 3,092,818   45,478 2,447,447 1,333,559 12,440,768 

Net Result for the 
Year  -  -  -  -   (171,591) (171,591)

Transfer to 
Accumulated Surplus

13(a), 
(c)  - 186,988  -  -   (186,988)    - 

Other Comprehensive 
Income for the year 13(a) 1,425,700  -  -  -  -   1,425,700 

Balance at  
30 June 2014 6,947,166 3,279,806   45,478 2,447,447 974,980 13,694,877 

Net Result for the 
Year  -  -  -  -   (298,768) (298,768)

Transfer to 
Accumulated Surplus

13(a), 
(c)  - 196,643  -  -   (196,643)    - 

Balance at  
30 June 2015 6,947,166 3,476,449   45,478 2,447,447 479,569 13,396,109 

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Yea & District Memorial Hospital Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These annual financial statements represent the 
audited general purpose financial statements for Yea 
& District Memorial Hospital for the period ending 
30 June 2015. The purpose of the report is to provide 
users with information about the Health Services’ 
stewardship of resources entrusted to it.

a. Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose 
financial statements which have been prepared in 
accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994 
and applicable AASs, which include interpretations 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
(AASB). They are presented in a manner consistent 
with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of 
Financial Statements.

The financial statements also comply with relevant 
Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the 
Department of Treasury and Finance, and relevant 
Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Minister 
for Finance.

The Health Service is a not-for profit entity and 
therefore applies the additional Aus paragraphs 
applicable to “not-for-profit” Health Services under 
the AASs.

The annual financial statements were authorised 
for issue by the Board of Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital on 31st August 2015.

b. Basis of accounting preparation and 
measurement

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a 
manner which ensures that the resulting financial 
information satisfies the concepts of relevance and 
reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the 
underlying transactions or other events is reported.

The accounting policies set out below have been 
applied in preparing the financial statements for 
the year ended 30 June 2015, and the comparative 
information presented in these financial statements for 
the year ended 30 June 2014.

The going concern basis was used to prepare the 
financial statements.

These financial statements are presented in 
Australian dollars, the functional and presentation 
currency of the Health Service.

The financial statements, except for cash flow 
information, have been prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, items 
are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income 
or expenses when they satisfy the definitions and 
recognition criteria for those items, that is they are 
recognised in the reporting period to which they 
relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with the historical cost convention, except for:

• non-current physical assets, which subsequent 
to acquisition, are measured at a revalued 
amount being their fair value at the date of the 
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent impairment losses. 
Revaluations are made and are re-assessed with 
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying 
amounts do not materially differ from their fair 
values;

• the fair value of assets other than land 
is generally based on their depreciated 
replacement value.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are 
required to be made about the carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on professional judgements 
derived from historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised and also 
in future periods that are affected by the revision. 
Judgements and assumptions made by management 
in the application of AASs that have significant effects 
on the financial statements and estimates relate to: 

• the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, 
plant and equipment, (refer to Note 1(k));

• actuarial assumptions for employee benefit 
provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, 
patterns of leave claims, future salary movements 
and future discount rates (refer to Note 1(l)); and

Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, 
Yea & District Memorial Hospital determines the 
policies and procedures for both recurring fair 
value measurements such as property, plant and 
equipment, investment properties and financial 
instruments, and for non-recurring fair value 

Y e a  &  D i s t r i c t  M e m o r i a l  H o s p i t a l  -  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 4 / 1 5 33



Yea & District Memorial Hospital Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2015

measurements such as non-financial physical assets 
held for sale, in accordance with the requirements of 
AASB 13 and the relevant FRDs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described 
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

• Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

• Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable

• Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Yea & 
District Memorial Hospital has determined classes 
of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and 
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.

In addition, Yea & District Memorial Hospital 
determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period.

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital independent valuation agency.

Yea & District Memorial Hospital in conjunction with 
VGV monitors the changes in the fair value of each 
asset and liability through relevant data sources to 
determine whether revaluation is required.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects 
only that period or in the period of the revision, and 
future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods. Judgements and assumptions made 
by management in the application of AASs that have 
significant effects on the financial statements and 
estimates, with a risk of material adjustments in the 
subsequent reporting period, relate to:

• the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, 
plant and equipment (refer to Note 1(k);

• actuarial assumptions for employee benefit 
provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, 
patterns of leave claims, future salary movements 
and future discount rates (refer to Note 1(l)).

c. Reporting entity

The financial statements include all the controlled 
activities of the Yea & District Memorial Hospital. 

Its principal address is:

45 Station Street
Yea
Victoria 3717.

A description of the nature of Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital’s operations and its principal activities is 
included in the report of operations, which does not 
form part of these financial statements.

Objectives and funding

Yea & District Memorial Hospital’s overall objective is:

Healthy Communities, as well as improve the quality 
of life to Victorians.

Yea & District Memorial Hospital is predominantly 
funded by accrual based grant funding for the 
provision of outputs. 

d. Principles of consolidation

Intersegment Transactions

Transactions between segments within the Yea & 
District Memorial Hospital have been eliminated 
to reflect the extent of the Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital’s operations as a group.

e. Scope and presentation of financial statements

Fund Accounting

Yea & District Memorial Hospital operates on a 
fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: 
Operating, Specific Purpose and Capital Funds. Yea 
& District Memorial Hospital’s Capital and Specific 
Purpose Funds include unspent capital donations 
and receipts from fund-raising activities conducted 
solely in respect of these funds.
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Yea & District Memorial Hospital Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2015

Services Supported By Health Services 
Agreement and Services Supported By 
Hospital and Community Initiatives

Activities classified as Services Supported by Health 
Services Agreement (HSA) are substantially funded 
by the Department of Health and Human Services 
and includes Residential Aged Care Services (RACS) 
and are also funded from other sources such as 
the Commonwealth, patients and residents, while 
Services Supported by Hospital and Community 
Initiatives (H&CI) are funded by Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital’s own activities or local initiatives 
and/or the Commonwealth.

Residential Aged Care Service

The Yea & District Memorial Hospital’s Residential 
Aged Care Service operations are an integral part 
of the entity and shares its resources. The results of 
the two operations have been segregated based 
on actual revenue earned and expenditure incurred 
by each operation in Note 2b to the financial 
statements.

The Yea & District Memorial Hospital’s Residential 
Aged Care Service does not have a separate 
Committee of Management and is substantially 
funded from Commonwealth bed-day subsidies.

Comprehensive operating statement

The comprehensive operating statement includes the 
subtotal entitled ‘net result before capital & specific 
items’ to enhance the understanding of the financial 
performance of Yea & District Memorial Hospital. 
This subtotal reports the result excluding items such 
as capital grants, assets received or provided free 
of charge, depreciation, expenditure using capital 
purpose income and items of an unusual nature 
and amount such as specific income and expenses. 
The exclusion of these items is made to enhance 
matching of income and expenses so as to facilitate 
the comparability and consistency of results between 
years and Victorian Public Health Services. The ‘net 
result before capital & specific items’ is used by the 
management of Yea & District Memorial Hospital, 
the Department of Health and Human Services and 
the Victorian Government to measure the ongoing 
operating performance of Health Services.

Capital and specific items, which are excluded from 
this sub-total, comprise:

• capital purpose income, which comprises all tied 
grants, donations and bequests received for the 
purpose of acquiring non-current assets, such as 

capital works, plant and equipment or intangible 
assets. It also includes donations of plant and 
equipment (refer Note 1 (g)). Consequently the 
recognition of revenue as capital purpose income 
is based on the intention of the provider of the 
revenue at the time the revenue is provided. 

• specific income/expense, comprises the following 
items, where material: 

• Voluntary departure packages

• Restructuring of operations (disaggregation/
aggregation of Health Services)

• Litigation settlements

• depreciation and amortisation, as described in 
Note 1 (h);

• assets provided or received free of charge (refer 
to Notes 1 (g) and (h)); and

• expenditure using capital purpose income, 
comprises expenditure which either falls below 
the asset capitalisation threshold or doesn’t meet 
asset recognition criteria and therefore does not 
result in the recognition of an asset in the balance 
sheet, where funding for that expenditure is from 
capital purpose income.

‘Other economic flows; are changes arising from 
market remeasurements. They include:

• gains and losses from disposals of non-financial 
assets;

• revaluations and impairments of non-financial 
physical and intangible assets; and

• fair value changes of financial instruments.

Balance sheet

Assets and liabilities are categorised either as current 
or non-current (non-current being those assets or 
liabilities expected to be recovered/settled more than 
12 months after reporting period), are disclosed in 
the notes where relevant.

The net result is equivalent to profit or loss derived in 
accordance with AASs.

Statement of changes in equity

The statement of changes in equity presents 
reconciliations of each non-owner and owner 
changes in equity from opening balance at the 
beginning of the reporting period to the closing 
balance at the end of the reporting period. It 
also shows separately changes due to amounts 
recognised in the comprehensive result and amounts 
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recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are classified according to whether or 
not they arise from operating activities, investing 
activities, or financing activities. This classification 
is consistent with requirements under AASB 107 
Statement of Cash Flows.

For the cash flow statement presentation purposes, 
cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafts, 
which are included as current borrowings in the 
balance sheet.

Rounding 

All amounts shown in the financial statements are 
expressed to the nearest dollar unless otherwise stated.

Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and 
sum of components are due to rounding.

f. Change in accounting policies

Subsequent to the 2013-14 reporting period, the 
following new and revised Standards have been 
adopted for the first time in the current period with 
their financial impacts disclosed.

AASB 10 Consolidated financial statements

AASB 10 provides a new approach to determine 
whether an entity has control over another entity, 
and therefore must present consolidated financial 
statements. The new approach requires the 
satisfaction of all three criteria for control to exist 
over an entity for financial reporting purposes:

a)  The investor has power over the investee;

b)  The investor has exposure, or rights to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee; and 

c)  The investor has the ability to use its power over 
the investee to affect the amount of investor’s 
returns.

Based on the new criteria prescribed in AASB 10, 
Yea & District Memorial Hospital has reviewed the 
existing arrangements to determine if there are any 
additional entities that need to be consolidated into 
the group. 

The standard has no impact on Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital 

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements

In accordance with AASB 11, there are two types of 

joint arrangements, i.e. joint operations and joint 
ventures. Joint operations arise where the investors 
have rights to the assets and obligations for the 
liabilities of an arrangement. A joint operator 
accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, 
revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise where 
the investors have rights to the net assets of the 
arrangement; joint ventures are accounted for under 
the equity method. Proportionate consolidation of 
joint ventures is no longer permitted. 

Yea & District Memorial Hospital has reviewed 
its existing contractual arrangements with other 
entities to ensure they are aligned with the new 
classifications under AASB 11. 

Yea & District Memorial Hospital’s treatment of its joint 
arrangement with Hume Rural Health Alliance has not 
changed as a result of the changes in AASB 11.

g. Income from transactions

Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 
Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to Yea 
& District Memorial Hospital and the income can be 
reliably measured at fair value. Unearned income 
at reporting date is reported as income received in 
advance.

Amounts disclosed as revenue are where applicable, 
net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.

Government Grants and other transfers of 
income (other than contributions by owners)

In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, 
government grants and other transfers of income 
(other than contributions by owners) are recognised 
as income when the Health Service gains control 
of the underlying assets irrespective of whether 
conditions are imposed on the Health Service’s use 
of the contributions.  

Contributions are deferred as income in advance 
when the Health Service has a present obligation 
to repay them and the present obligation can be 
reliably measured.

Indirect Contributions from the Department of 
Health and Human Services

• Insurance is recognised as revenue following 
advice from the Department of Health and 
Human Services.

• Long Service Leave (LSL) – Revenue is recognised 
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upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability 
in line with the arrangements set out in the 
Metropolitan Health and Aged Care Services 
Division Hospital Circular 05/2013 (update for 
2013-14). 

Patient and Resident Fees

Patient fees are recognised as revenue at the time 
invoices are raised.

Private Practice Fees

Private practice fees are recognised as revenue at the 
time invoices are raised.

Revenue from commercial activities

Revenue from commercial activities such as 
commercial laboratory medicine is recognised at the 
time invoices are raised.

Donations and Other Bequests

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue 
when received. If donations are for a special purpose, 
they may be appropriated to a surplus, such as the 
specific restricted purpose surplus.

Interest Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a time 
proportionate basis that takes in account the 
effective yield of the financial asset, which allocates 
interest over the relevant period.

Fair value of assets and services received free 
of charge or for nominal consideration

Resources received free of charge or for nominal 
consideration are recognised at their fair value 
when the transferee obtains control over them, 
irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are 
imposed over the use of the contributions, unless 
received from another Health Service or agency as 
a consequence of a restructuring of administrative 
arrangements.  In the latter case, such transfer will 
be recognised at carrying value.  Contributions in 
the form of services are only recognised when a fair 
value can be reliably determined and the service 
would have been purchased if not received as a 
donation.

Other income

Other income includes non-property rental, 
dividends, forgiveness of liabilities, and bad debt 
reversals.

h. Expense recognition

Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and 
reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Cost of goods sold

Costs of goods sold are recognised when the sale of 
an item occurs by transferring the cost or value of 
the item/s from inventories.

Employee expenses

Employee expenses include:

• wages and salaries;

• annual leave; 

• sick leave; 

• long service leave; and

• superannuation expenses which are reported 
differently depending upon whether employees 
are members of defined benefit or defined 
contribution plans. 

Defined contribution superannuation plans

In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) 
superannuation plans, the associated expense 
is simply the employer contributions that are 
paid or payable in respect of employees who are 
members of these plans during the reporting 
period. Contributions to defined contribution 
superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.

Defined benefit superannuation plans

The amount charged to the comprehensive 
operating statement in respect of defined benefit 
superannuation plans represents the contributions 
made by the Health Service to the superannuation 
plans in respect of the services of current 
Health Service staff during the reporting period.  
Superannuation contributions are made to the plans 
based on the relevant rules of each plan, and are 
based upon actuarial advice.

Employees of the Yea & District Memorial Hospital 
are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and 
the Yea & District Memorial Hospital contributes to 
both the defined benefit and defined contribution 
plans.  The defined benefit plan(s) provide benefits 
based on years of service and final average salary.

The name and details of the major employee 
superannuation funds and contributions made by 
the Yea & District Memorial Hospital are disclosed in 
Note 11: Superannuation. 
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Depreciation 

All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and 
equipment and other non-financial physical assets 
that have finite useful lives are depreciated (i.e. 
excludes land assets held for sale, and investment 
properties). Depreciation begins when the asset is 
available for use, which is when it is in the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in a manner intended by management. 

Intangible produced assets with finite lives are 
depreciated as an expense from transactions 
on a systematic basis over the asset’s useful life. 
Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight line 
basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any 
estimated residual value over its estimated useful life. 
Estimates of the remaining useful lives, residual value 
and depreciation method for all assets are reviewed 
at least annually, and adjustments made where 
appropriate. This depreciation charge is not funded 
by the Department of Health and Human Services. 
Assets with a cost in excess of $1,000 are capitalised 
and depreciation has been provided on depreciable 
assets so as to allocate their cost or valuation over 
their estimated useful lives.  

The following table indicates the expected useful 
lives of non-current assets on which the depreciation 
charges are based.

2015 2014

Buildings

 - Structure Shell 
Building Fabric 50 to 60 Years 38 to 50 Years

 - Site Engineering 
Services and 
Central Plant

30 to 40 Years 36 to 42 Years

Central Plant

 - Fit Out 25 Years 20 to 25 Years

 - Trunk Reticulated 
Building Systems 30 Years 21 to 25 Years

Plant & Equipment 10 Years 10 Years

Medical Equipment 5 to 8 Years 5 to 8 Years

Computers & 
Communications 3 Years 3 Years

Furniture & Fittings 5 Years 5 Years

Motor Vehicles 7 Years 7 Years

As part of the buildings valuation, building values 
were separated into components and each 
component assessed for its useful life which is 
represented above.

Grants and other transfers

Grants and other transfers to third parties (other 
than contribution to owners) are recognised as an 
expense in the reporting period in which they are 
paid or payable. They include transactions such as: 
grants, subsidies and personal benefit payments 
made in cash to individuals.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses generally represent 
the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal 
operations and include:

Supplies and consumables

Supplies and services costs which are recognised as 
an expense in the reporting period in which they are 
incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories 
held for distribution are expensed when distributed.

Bad and doubtful debts

Refer to Note 1 (k) Impairment of financial assets.

Fair value of assets, services and resources 
provided free of charge or for nominal 
consideration

Contributions of resources provided free of charge or 
for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair 
value when the transferee obtains control over them, 
irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are 
imposed over the use of the contributions, unless 
received from another agency as a consequence of a 
restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the 
latter case, such a transfer will be recognised at its 
carrying value.

Contributions in the form of services are only 
recognised when a fair value can be reliably 
determined and the services would have been 
purchased if not donated.

i. Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income measures the change 
in volume or value of assets or liabilities that do not 
result from transactions.

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities 
includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as 
follows:
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Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial 
physical assets

Refer to Note 1(k) Revaluations of non-financial 
physical assets.

Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of non-financial 
assets

Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial 
assets is recognised at the date of disposal and is the 
difference between the proceeds and the carrying 
value of the asset at the time.

j. Financial instruments

Financial instruments arise out of contractual 
agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one 
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity. Due to the nature of the Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital’s activities, certain financial assets 
and financial liabilities arise under statute rather 
than a contract. Such financial assets and financial 
liabilities do not meet the definition of financial 
instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: 
Presentation. For example, statutory receivables 
arising from taxes do not meet the definition of 
financial instruments as they do not arise under 
contract. 

Where relevant, for note disclosure purposes, a 
distinction is made between those financial assets 
and financial liabilities that meet the definition of 
financial instruments in accordance with AASB 132 
and those that do not. 

The following refers to financial instruments unless 
otherwise stated.

Categories of non-derivative financial 
instruments

Receivables

Receivables are financial instrument assets with fixed 
and determinable payments that are not quoted on 
an active market. These assets are initially recognised 
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, receivables 
are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment. 

Receivables category includes cash and deposits 
(refer to Note 1(k)), trade receivables, and other 
receivables, but not statutory receivables.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Financial instrument liabilities are initially recognised 

on the date they are originated. They are initially 
measured at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
these financial instruments are measured at amortised 
cost with any difference between the initial recognised 
amount and the redemption value being recognised in 
profit and loss over the period of the interest-bearing 
liability, using the effective interest rate method.

Financial instrument liabilities measured at amortised 
cost include all of the Health Service’s contractual 
payables, deposits held and advances received, and 
interest-bearing arrangements other than those 
designated at fair value through profit or loss. 

k. Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance 
sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, 
deposits at call and highly liquid investments (with 
an original maturity of three months or less), which 
are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash 
commitments rather than for investment purposes, 
which are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Receivables

Receivables consist of:

• contractual receivables, which includes mainly 
debtors in relation to goods and services, and 
accrued investment income; and 

• statutory receivables, which includes 
predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian 
Government and Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) 
input tax credits recoverable.

Receivables that are contractual are classified as 
financial instruments and categorised as loans and 
receivables. Statutory receivables are recognised 
and measured similarly to contractual receivables 
(except for impairment), but are not classified as 
financial instruments because they do not arise from 
a contract.

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due 
and are due for settlement within 30 days from the 
date of recognition. Collectability of debts is reviewed 
on an ongoing basis, and debts which are known 
to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for 
doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective 
evidence that the debts may not be collected and 
bad debts are written off when identified.
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Property, plant and equipment

All non-current physical assets are measured initially 
at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment. 
Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, 
the cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition. 
Assets transferred as part of a merger/machinery of 
government are transferred at their carrying amount.

More details about the valuation techniques and 
inputs used in determining the fair value of non-
financial physical assets are discussed in Note 8 
Property, plant and equipment.

Crown land is measured at fair value with 
regard to the property’s highest and best use 
after due consideration is made for any legal or 
physical restrictions imposed on the asset, public 
announcements or commitments made in relation 
to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical 
opportunities that may be available in relation to the 
asset(s) are not taken into account until it is virtually 
certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. 
Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current 
use of these non-financial physical assets will be their 
highest and best uses.

Land and buildings are recognised initially at 
cost and subsequently measured at fair value less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Plant, equipment and vehicles are recognised 
initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair 
value less accumulated depreciation and impairment.  
Depreciated historical cost is generally a reasonable 
proxy for fair value because of the short lives of the 
assets concerned.

Leasehold improvements

The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised 
as an asset and depreciated over the shorter of the 
remaining term of the lease or the estimated useful 
life of the improvements.

Revaluations of non-current physical assets

Non-current physical assets are measured at fair 
value and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103F 
Non-current physical assets.  This revaluation process 
normally occurs at least every five years, based upon 
the asset’s Government Purpose Classification, but 
may occur more frequently if fair value assessments 
indicate material changes in values. Independent 
valuers are used to conduct these scheduled 
revaluations and any interim revaluations are 
determined in accordance with the requirements 

of the FRDs. Revaluation increments or decrements 
arise from differences between an asset’s carrying 
value and fair value.

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘other 
comprehensive income’ and are credited directly in 
equity to the asset revaluation surplus, except that, to 
the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation 
decrement in respect of that same class of asset 
previously recognised as an expense in net result, the 
increment is recognised as income in the net result.

Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘other 
comprehensive income’ to the extent that a credit 
balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in 
respect of the same class of property, plant and 
equipment. 

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases 
relating to individual assets within an asset class are 
offset against one another within that class but are 
not offset in respect of assets in different classes. 

Revaluation surplus is not normally transferred to 
accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant 
asset.

In accordance with FRD 103F, Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital’s non-current physical assets were assessed 
to determine whether revaluation of the non-current 
physical assets was required and did not identify 
any significant movement that would require a 
revaluation.

Prepayments

Other non-financial assets include prepayments 
which represent payments in advance of receipt of 
goods or services or that part of expenditure made 
in one accounting period covering a term extending 
beyond that period.

Disposal of non-financial assets

Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial assets 
is recognised in the comprehensive operating 
statement. Refer to note 1(i) – ‘other comprehensive 
income’. 

Impairment of non-financial assets

All non-financial assets are assessed annually for 
indications of impairment, except for:

• inventories;

• assets arising from construction contracts.

If there is an indication of impairment, the assets 
concerned are tested as to whether their carrying 
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value exceeds their possible recoverable amount. 
Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the difference is written-off 
as an expense except to the extent that the write-
down can be debited to an asset revaluation surplus 
amount applicable to that same class of asset.

If there is an indication that there has been a reversal 
in the estimate of an asset’s recoverable amount 
since the last impairment loss was recognised, the 
carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable 
amount. This reversal of the impairment loss 
occurs only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised in prior years. 

It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or 
destruction of an asset, the future economic benefits 
arising from the use of the asset will be replaced 
unless a specific decision to the contrary has been 
made.  The recoverable amount for most assets is 
measured at the higher of depreciated replacement 
cost and fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable 
amount for assets held primarily to generate net 
cash inflows is measured at the higher of the present 
value of future cash flows expected to be obtained 
from the asset and fair value less costs to sell.

Investments in joint operations

In respect of any interest in joint operations, Yea & 
District Memorial Hospital recognises in the financial 
statements:

• its assets, including its share of any assets held 
jointly;

• any liabilities including its share of liabilities that it 
had incurred;

• its revenue from the sale of its share of the 
output from the joint operation;

• its share of the revenue from the sale of the 
output by the operation; and

• its expenses, including its share of any expenses 
incurred jointly.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital assesses whether there is 
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial asset is impaired. All financial instrument 
assets, except those measured at fair value through 

profit or loss, are subject to annual review for 
impairment.

Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts 
on a regular basis. Bad debts considered as written 
off and allowances for doubtful receivables are 
expensed. Bad debt written off by mutual consent 
and the allowance for doubtful debts are classified as 
‘other comprehensive income’ in the net result.

The amount of the allowance is the difference 
between the financial asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows, 
discounted at the effective interest rate.

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-
contractual) financial assets, which are not financial 
instruments, professional judgement is applied in 
assessing materiality using estimates, averages and 
other computational methods in accordance with 
AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

l. Liabilities

Payables

Payables consist of:

• contractual payables which consist predominantly 
of accounts payable representing liabilities for 
goods and services provided to the Health 
Service prior to the end of the financial year that 
are unpaid, and arise when the Health Service 
becomes obliged to make future payments in 
respect of the purchase of those goods and 
services. The normal credit terms for accounts 
payable are usually Nett 30 days.

• statutory payables, such as goods and services 
tax and fringe benefits tax payables.

Contractual payables are classified as financial 
instruments and are initially recognised at fair value, 
and then subsequently carried at amortised cost. 
Statutory payables are recognised and measured 
similarly to contractual payables, but are not 
classified as financial instruments and not included in 
the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, 
because they do not arise from a contract.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Health Service 
has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of 
economic benefits is probable, and the amount of 
the provision can be measured reliably.
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The amount recognised as a liability is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at reporting date, taking into 
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the 
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash 
flows, using a discount rate that reflects the time 
value of money and risks specific to the provision.

When some or all of the economic benefits required 
to settle a provision are expected to be received 
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as 
an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be 
received and the amount of the receivable can be 
measured reliably.

Employee benefits

This provision arises for benefits accruing to 
employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual 
leave and long service leave for services rendered to 
the reporting date.

Wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave 
and accrued days off

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits, annual leave, and accumulating 
sick leave are all recognised in the provision for 
employee benefits as ‘current liabilities’, because the 
health service does not have an unconditional right 
to defer settlements of these liabilities.

Depending on the expectation of the timing of 
settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries, annual 
leave and sick leave are measured at:

• Undiscounted value – if the health service 
expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or

• Present value – if the health service does not 
expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Long service leave (LSL)

Liability for LSL is recognised in the provision for 
employee benefits. 

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements as a current liability, even where 
the health service does not expect to settle the 
liability within 12 months because it will not have the 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 
entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 
months.

The components of this current LSL liability are 
measured at:

• Undiscounted value – if the health service 
expects to wholly settle within 12 months; and

• Present value – if the health service does not 
expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current 
liability. There is an unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the entitlement until the employee has 
completed the requisite years of service. This non-
current LSL liability is measured at present value.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 
is terminated before the normal retirement date 
or when an employee decides to accept an offer 
of benefits in exchange for the termination of 
employment.

The health service recognises termination benefits 
when it is demonstrably committed to either 
terminating the employment of current employees 
according to a detailed formal plan without 
possibility of withdrawal or providing termination 
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage 
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 
12 months after the end of the reporting period are 
discounted to present value.

On-costs

Provision for on-costs, such as workers 
compensation and superannuation are recognised 
together with provisions for employee benefits.

Superannuation liabilities

Yea & District Memorial Hospital does not recognise 
any unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of 
the superannuation plans because the Health Service 
has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future 
benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is 
to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due.

m. Leases

A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed 
period of time in exchange for payment. Leases are 
classified at their inception as either operating or 
finance leases based on the economic substance of 
the agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership.

Leases of property, plant and equipment are 
classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the 
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee.  
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For service concession arrangements, the 
commencement of the lease term is deemed to be 
the date the asset is commissioned.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

The Health Service does not hold any finance lease 
arrangements with other parties.

Operating leases

Entity as lessee

Operating lease payments, including any contingent 
rentals, are recognised as an expense in the 
comprehensive operating statement on a straight 
line basis over the lease term, except where another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time 
pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the 
leased asset. The leased asset is not recognised in 
the balance sheet.

Leasehold Improvements

The cost of leasehold improvements are capitalised 
as an asset and depreciated over the remaining 
term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the 
improvements, whichever is the shorter.

n. Equity

Contributed capital

Consistent with Australian Accounting Interpretation 
1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-
Owned Public Sector Entities and FRD 119A 
Contributions by Owners, appropriations for 
additions to the net asset base have been designated 
as contributed capital. Other transfers that are in the 
nature of contributions to or distributions by owners 
that have been designated as contributed capital are 
also treated as contributed capital.

Property, plant & equipment revaluation 
surplus

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record 
increments and decrements on the revaluation of 
non-current physical assets.

General purpose surplus

These are accumulated funds of surplus revenue 
over expenditure from fund raising activities and 
community support programs.

Specific restricted purpose surplus

A specific restricted purpose surplus is established 

where the Health Service has possession or title to 
the funds but has no discretion to amend or vary 
the restriction and/or condition underlying the funds 
received.

o. Commitments 

Commitments for future expenditure include 
operating and capital commitments arising from 
contracts. These commitments are disclosed by way 
of a note (refer to note 16) at their nominal value and 
are inclusive of the GST payable. In addition, where 
it is considered appropriate and provides additional 
relevant information to users, the net present 
values of significant individual projects are stated. 
These future expenditures cease to be disclosed 
as commitments once the related liabilities are 
recognised on the balance sheet.

p. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not 
recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed 
by way of note and, if quantifiable, are measured 
at nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent 
liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or 
payable respectively.

q. Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net 
of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation 
authority. In this case, the GST payable is recognised 
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of 
the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net 
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the 
taxation authority is included with other receivables 
or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST 
components of cash flows arising from investing or 
financing activities which are recoverable from, or 
payable to the taxation authority, are presented as an 
operating cash flow.

Commitments for expenditure and contingent assets 
and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.
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r. AASs issued that are not yet effective

Certain new Australian accounting standards have 
been published that are not mandatory for the 30 
June 2015 reporting period.  DTF assesses the impact 
of all these new standards and advises the Health 
Service of their applicability and early adoption 
where applicable.

The Health Service has elected to early adopt AASB 
2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit 
Public Sector Entitles, which has been released by 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board on 13 
July 2015, and has received the ministerial approval 
for early adoption in the 2014-15 reporting period. 
The adoption of this amending standard has resulted 
in reduced disclosures at notes 8 (d) and 8 (e) with 
respect to reporting on fair value. There are no 
other impacts arising from the early adoption of the 
standard.

As at 30 June 2015, the following standards and 
interpretations had been issued by the AASB but 
were not yet effective.  They become effective for 
the first financial statements for reporting periods 
commencing after the stated operative dates as 
detailed in the table below. Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital has not and does not intend to adopt these 
standards early.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Standard / 
Interpretation

Summary Applicable 
for annual 
reporting 
periods 
beginning on

Impact on public sector 
entity financial statements

AASB 9 Financial 
Instruments

The key changes include the simplified 
requirements for the classification and 
measurement of financial assets, a new 
hedging accounting model and a revised 
impairment loss model to recognise 
impairment losses earlier, as opposed 
to the current approach that recognises 
impairment only when incurred.

1 Jan 2018 The assessment has 
identified that the financial 
impact of available for sale 
(AFS) assets will now be 
reported through other 
comprehensive income (OCI) 
and no longer recycled to 
the profit and loss. 

While the preliminary 
assessment has not identified 
any material impact arising 
from AASB 9, it will continue 
to be monitored and 
assessed. 

AASB 15 Revenue 
from Contracts 
with Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires 
an entity to recognise revenue when the 
entity satisfies a performance obligation by 
transferring a promised good or service to 
a customer.

1 Jan 2017

(Exposure Draft 
263 – potential 
deferral to 1 Jan 
2018

The changes in revenue 
recognition requirements 
in AASB 15 may result in 
changes to the timing and 
amount of revenue recorded 
in the financial statements. 
The Standard will also require 
additional disclosures on 
service revenue and contract 
modifications. 

A potential impact will be 
the upfront recognition of 
revenue from licenses that 
cover multiple reporting 
periods. Revenue that was 
deferred and amortised over 
a period may now need to 
be recognised immediately 
as a transitional adjustment 
against the opening 
returned earnings if there 
are no former performance 
obligations outstanding.
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Standard / 
Interpretation

Summary Applicable 
for annual 
reporting 
periods 
beginning on

Impact on public 
sector entity financial 
statements

AASB 2014-1 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards [Part 
E Financial 
Instruments]

Amends various AASs to reflect the AASB’s 
decision to defer the mandatory application 
date of AASB 9 to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 
as a consequence of Chapter 6 Hedge 
Accounting, and to amend reduced 
disclosure requirements.

1 Jan 2018 This amending standard 
will defer the application 
period of AASB 9 to the 
2018-19 reporting period 
in accordance with the 
transition requirements.

AASB 2014-4 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards – 
Clarification 
of Acceptable 
Methods of 
Depreciation and 
Amortisation
[AASB 116 & AASB 
138]

Amends AASB 116 Property, Plant and 
Equipment and AASB 138 Intangible Assets 
to:
• establish the principle for the basis of 

depreciation and amortisation as being 
the expected pattern of consumption 
of the future economic benefits of an 
asset;

• prohibit the use of revenue-based 
methods to calculate the depreciation 
or amortisation of an asset, tangible or 
intangible, because revenue generally 
reflects the pattern of economic 
benefits that are generated from 
operating the business, rather than the 
consumption through the use of the 
asset.

1 Jan 2016 The assessment has 
indicated that there is no 
expected impact as the 
revenue-based method is 
not used for depreciation 
and amortisation.

AASB 2014-9 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards – 
Equity Method in 
Separate Financial 
Statements 
[AASB 1, 127 & 128]

Amends AASB 127 Separate Financial 
Statements to allow entities to use 
the equity method of accounting for 
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures 
and associates in their separate financial 
statements.

1 July 2016 The assessment indicates 
that there is no expected 
impact as the entity will 
continue to account 
for the  investments in 
subsidiaries, joint ventures 
and associates using the 
cost method as mandated 
if separate financial 
statements are presented in 
accordance with FRD 113A.

Yea & District Memorial Hospital Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2015
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Standard / 
Interpretation

Summary Applicable 
for annual 
reporting 
periods 
beginning on

Impact on public 
sector entity financial 
statements

AASB 2014-10 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards – Sale 
or Contribution 
of Assets between 
an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint 
Venture [AASB 10 
& AASB 128]

AASB 2014-10 amends AASB 10 
Consolidated Financial Statements and 
AASB 128 Investments in Associates to 
ensure consistent treatment in dealing with 
the sale or contribution of assets between 
an investor and its associate or joint 
venture. The amendments require that:

• a full gain or loss to be recognised 
by the investor when a transaction 
involves a business (whether it is 
housed in a subsidiary or not); and

• a partial gain or loss to be recognised 
by the parent when a transaction 
involves assets that do not constitute 
a business, even if these assets are 
housed in a subsidiary.

1 July 2016 The assessment has 
indicated that there is 
limited impact, as the 
revisions to AASB 10 and 
AASB 128 are guidance in 
nature.

AASB 2015-6 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards – 
Extending Related 
Party Disclosures 
to Not-for-Profit 
Public Sector 
Entities 
[AASB 10, AASB 124 
& AASB 1049]

The Amendments extend the scope of 
AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures to not-
for-profit public sector entities.  A guidance 
has been included to assist the application 
of the Standard by not-for-profit public 
sector entities. 

1 Jan 2016 The amending standard 
will result in extended 
disclosures on the entity’s 
key management personnel 
(KMP), and the related 
party transactions. 

In addition to the new standards and amendments 
above, the AASB has issued a list of other amending 
standards that are not effective for the 2014-15 
reporting period (as listed below). In general, these 
amending standards include editorial and references 
changes that are expected to have insignificant 
impacts on public sector reporting. 

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010). 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and 
Financial Instruments

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards [PART D – Consequential Amendments 
arising from AASB 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts only] 

AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in 
Joint Operations [AASB 1 & AASB 11]

AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 15

AASB 2014-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Agriculture: Bearer Plants [AASB 101, 
AASB 116, AASB 117, AASB 123, AASB 136, AASB 140 
& AASB 141]

AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014)

AASB 2014-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) – 
Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 
(December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)]
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AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to 
AASB 101 [AASB 7, AASB 101, AASB 134 & AASB 1049]

AASB 2015-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 
Materiality

s. Category groups

The Yea & District Memorial Hospital has used the 
following category groups for reporting purposes for 
the current and previous financial years.

Admitted Patient Services (Admitted Patients) 
comprises all acute and subacute admitted patient 
services, where services are delivered in public 
hospitals.

Aged Care comprises a range of in home, specialist 
geriatric, residential care and community based 
programs and support services, such as Home and 
Community Care (HACC) that are targeted to older 
people, people with a disability, and their carers.

Primary, Community and Dental Health comprises 
a range of home based, community based, community, 
primary health and dental services including health 
promotion and counselling, physiotherapy, speech 
therapy, podiatry and occupational therapy and a 
range of dental health services

Residential Aged Care including Mental Health 
(RAC incl. Mental Health) referred to in the past 
as psychogeriatric residential services, comprises 
those Commonwealth-licensed residential aged care 
services in receipt of supplementary funding from 
the department under the mental health program.  It 
excludes all other residential services funded under the 
mental health program, such as mental health funded 
community care units and secure extended care units.

Other Services not reported elsewhere - (Other) 
comprises services not separately classified above, 
including: Public Health Services including laboratory 
testing, blood borne viruses / sexually transmitted 
infections clinical services, Kooris liaison officers, 
immunisation and screening services, drugs services 
including drug withdrawal, counselling and the needle 
and syringe program, Disability services including 
aids and equipment and flexible support packages to 
people with a disability, Community Care programs 
including sexual assault support, early parenting 
services, parenting assessment and skills development, 
and various support services.  Health and Community 
Initiatives also falls in this category group.
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NOTE 2: ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY SOURCE

Admitted
Patients

2015
$

RAC Incl. 
Mental 
Health

2015
$

Aged
Care
2015

$

Primary
Health

2015
$

Other
2015

$

Total
2015

$

Government Grant   2,241,034   1,247,221 134,167 334,268     2,037   3,958,727 
Indirect Contributions by 
Department of Health and Human 
Services

  29,607   711   357   783   71,012 102,469 

Patient & Resident Fees 179,992 458,125     7,872      -        -   645,989 
Other Revenue from Operating 
Activities     5,307     4,526      -       2,692 167,935 180,461 

Commercial Activities      -        -        -        -     94,799   94,799 
Total Revenue from Operating 
Activities 2,455,940   1,710,583 142,395 337,744 335,783 4,982,445 

Interest      -        -        -        -   196,643 196,643 
Total Revenue from Non-
Operating Activities      -        -        -        -   196,643 196,643 

Capital Purpose Income (excluding 
Interest)      -        -        -        -   150,550 150,550 

Capital Interest      -        -        -        -     36,036   36,036 
Total Capital Purpose Income      -        -        -        -   186,586 186,586 

Total Revenue 2,455,940   1,710,583 142,395 337,744 719,013 5,365,675 

Admitted
Patients

2014
$

RAC Incl. 
Mental 
Health

2014
$

Aged
Care
2014

$

Primary
Health

2014
$

Other
2014

$

Total
2014

$

Government Grant   2,308,587   1,103,560 131,402 338,823      -     3,882,372 
Indirect contributions by 
Department of Health and Human 
Services

  27,469   562   282   619    (6,142) 22,789

Patient & Resident Fees   85,922 452,383   12,439      -        -   550,744 
Other Revenue from Operating 
Activities     8,320     4,789      -       3,565 119,333 136,007 

Commercial Activities      -        -        -        -     82,651   82,651 
Total Revenue from Operating 
Activities 2,430,297   1,561,294 144,123 343,007 195,843 4,674,564 

Interest      -        -        -        -   186,988 186,988 
Total Revenue from Non-
Operating Activities      -        -        -        -   186,988 186,988 

Capital Purpose Income (excluding 
Interest)      -        -        -        -   216,411 216,411 

Total Capital Purpose Income      -        -        -        -   216,411 216,411 

Total Revenue 2,430,297   1,561,294 144,123 343,007 599,243  5,077,963 

Indirect contributions by Department of Health (1 July 2014 - 31 Dec 2014) / Department of Health and Human 
Services (1 Jan 2015 - 30 June 2015)
Department of Health / Department of Health and Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of the 
Health Service for long service leave and insurance expenses.  These amounts have been brought to account in 
determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses.
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NOTE 3: ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES BY SOURCE

Admitted
Patients

2015
$

RAC Incl. 
Mental 
Health

2015
$

Aged
Care
2015

$

Primary
Health

2015
$

Other
2015

$

Total
2015

$

Employee Expenses   1,065,167   1,241,130 97,823  185,589  975,358   3,565,067 
Non Salary Labour Costs  194,305    -    -    -    -  194,305 
Supplies & Consumables 70,010 86,412   1,689 59,001  104,331  321,443 
Other Expenses 73,654 62,872 13,750 19,245  832,773   1,002,294 
Transfer Pricing  730,233  667,092 49,597  106,531 (1,553,453)    - 
Total Expenditure from Operating 
Activities 2,133,369 2,057,506  162,859  370,366  359,009 5,083,109 

Expenditure for Capital Purposes    -    -    -    - 12,659 12,659 
Depreciation (refer note 4)    -    -    -    -  568,674  568,674 
Total other expenses    -    -    -    -  581,333  581,333 

Total Expenses 2,133,369 2,057,506  162,859  370,366  940,342 5,664,442 
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NOTE 3: ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES BY SOURCE (CONTINUED)

Admitted
Patients

2014
$

RAC Incl. 
Mental 
Health

2014
$

Aged
Care
2014

$

Primary
Health

2014
$

Other
2014

$

Total
2014

$

Employee Expenses   1,049,537   1,128,955  104,002  201,525  788,729   3,272,748 
Non Salary Labour Costs  181,399    -    -    -    -  181,399 
Supplies & Consumables 79,261 65,692  937 47,655 94,893  288,438 
Other Expenses 59,338 51,398 12,884 10,162  739,862  873,644 
Transfer Pricing  672,108  618,315 45,442 97,607 (1,433,472)    - 
Total Expenditure from Operating 
Activities 2,041,643 1,864,360  163,265  356,949  190,012 4,616,229 

Expenditure for Capital Purposes    -    -    -    - 10,855 10,855 
Depreciation (refer note 4)    -    -    -    -  622,470  622,470 
Other Expenses    -    -    -    -    -    - 
Total other expenses    -    -    -    -  633,325  633,325 

Total Expenses 2,041,643 1,864,360  163,265  356,949  823,337 5,249,554 

NOTE 3A: ANALYSIS OF EXPENSE AND REVENUE BY INTERNALLY MANAGED 
AND RESTRICTED SPECIFIC PURPOSE FUNDS

 Expenses
2015

$

 Expenses
2014

$

 Revenue
2015

$

 Revenue
2014

$
Medical Clinic   9,031   1,261 48,725 45,702 
Catering Services 38,656 36,685 44,083 36,583 
Total 47,687 37,946 92,808 82,285 
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NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 

Cash on Hand   400 400 
Cash at Bank   268,573  1,373,454 
Short Term Deposits   6,381,000  4,200,000 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents   6,649,973  5,573,854 

Represented by:
Total Cash for Health Service Operations (as per Cash Flow Statement)   4,369,488  4,064,913 
Cash for Monies Held in Trust   2,280,485  1,508,941 
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents   6,649,973  5,573,854 

NOTE 4: DEPRECIATION

Total
2015

$

Total
2014

$
Buildings  511,940  569,964 
Computers & Communications 18,826 12,893 
Furniture & Fittings   2,951   4,551 
Medical Equipment   7,919   8,960 
Motor Vehicles   9,427   9,427 
Plant & Equipment 12,453 11,630 
Non-Medical Equipment   5,158   5,045 
Total Depreciation  568,674  622,470 
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NOTE 6: RECEIVABLES

Current

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 
Contractual
Trade Debtors 13,574   11,110 
Patient Fees 83,788   67,329 
Accrued Investment Income   5,991   17,742 
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Patient Fees  -      (1,133)

  103,353   95,048 

Statutory
Department of Health and Human Services 47,531 159,137 
GST Receivable 10,920   17,973 
Total Current Receivables   161,804 272,158 

Non Current
Contractual
Statutory
Department of Health and Human Services Long Service Leave   109,400   38,388 
Total Non Current Receivables   109,400   38,388 

Total Receivables   271,204 310,546 

Note 6(a): Movement in the Allowances for Doubtful Debts
Balance at Beginning of Year  (1,133)    (1,137)
Amounts Written Off During the Year  -   -   
Amounts Recovered During the Year  -   -   
Increase/(Decrease) in Allowance Recognised in Net Result   1,133  4 
Balance at End of Year  -      (1,133)

Note 6(b): Ageing Analysis of Receivables
Please refer to note 15(c) for the ageing analysis of receivables

Note 6(c): Nature and Extent of Risk Arising from Receivables
Please refer to note 15(c) for the nature and extent of risk arising from receivables
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NOTE 7: OTHER ASSETS

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 

Prepayments 10,665   45,937 
Hume Rural Health Alliance 56,284   45,663 

66,949   91,600 

NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Total
2015

$

Total
2014

$
(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation

Land at Fair Value  683,000 683,000 
Total Land  683,000 683,000 

Buildings at Fair Value   9,513,440 9,479,000 
Less Accumulated Depreciation  511,940    -   

Total Buildings at Fair Value   9,001,500 9,479,000 

Buildings Under Construction at Cost  -     53,885 
 -     53,885 

Plant & Equipment at Fair Value  433,825 338,757 
Less Accumulated Depreciation  232,986 190,306 

Total Plant & Equipment at Fair Value  200,839 148,451 

Medical Equipment at Fair Value  109,950   88,681 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 69,684   61,725 

Total Medical Equipment at Fair Value 40,266   26,956 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment   9,925,605   10,391,292 
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NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of each class of asset at the beginning and end of the previous 
and current financial year is set out below.

Land
$

Buildings
$

Plant &
Equipment

$

Medical
Equipment

$
Total

$
Balance at 1 July 2013  449,000   8,843,639  148,268 24,286 9,465,193 
Additions  -      67,510    43,729 11,630 122,869 
Disposals  -    -    -    -      -   
Net Transfers between Classes    -   
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)  234,000   1,191,700  -    -   1,425,700 
Depreciation (note 4)  -      (569,964)   (43,546) (8,960) (622,470)
Balance at 1 July 2014  683,000   9,532,885  148,451 26,956 10,391,292 
Additions  -      34,440  101,203 21,229 156,872 
Disposals  -    -    -    -      -   
Work in Progress Transferred   (53,885) (53,885)
Assets Received Free of Charge  -    -    -    -      -   
Revaluation Increments/(Decrements)  -    -    -    -      -   
Depreciation (note 4)  -      (511,940)   (48,815) (7,919)   (568,674)
Balance at 30 June 2015  683,000   9,001,500  200,839 40,266 9,925,605 
   
Land and buildings carried at valuation
An independent valuation of the Health Service's land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General 
Victoria to determine the fair value of the land and buildings. The valuation, which conforms to Australian 
Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable parties in an arms length transaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments. The 
effective date of valuation was 30th June 2014.
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NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30th June 2015

Carrying
Amount as at
30 June 2015

Fair value measurement
at end of reporting period using:

Level 1 (i)  Level 2 (i)  Level 3 (i) 
Land at Fair Value
Non-Specialised Land    95,000  -     95,000 -   
Specialised land
 - Hospital Site, 39-45 Station St, Yea  588,000  -      -   588,000 
Total of Land at Fair Value  683,000  -     95,000 588,000 

Buildings at Fair Value
Non-Specialised Buildings  167,760  -   167,760 -   
Specialised Buildings   8,833,740  -      -    8,833,740 
Total of Buildings at Fair Value   9,001,500  -   167,760  8,833,740 

Plant and Equipment at Fair Value

Plant, Equipment and Motor Vehicles at Fair Value
Motor Vehicles    23,214  -      -      23,214 
Plant and Equipment

Plant and Non-Medical Equipment    58,462  -      -      58,462 
Computers and Communications  105,024  -      -   105,024 
Furniture and Fittings    14,138  -      -      14,138 

Total Plant, Equipment and Motor Vehicles at  
Fair Value  200,838  -      -   200,838 

Total Medical Equipment at Fair Value    40,267  -      -      40,267 

  9,925,605  -   262,760  9,662,845 

(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy , see Note 1.
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NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30th June 2015 (continued)

Carrying
Amount as at
30 June 2014

Fair value measurement
at end of reporting period using:

Level 1 (i)  Level 2 (i)  Level 3 (i) 
Land at Fair Value
Non-Specialised Land  95,000    -     95,000 -   
Specialised land
 - Hospital Site, 39-45 Station St, Yea      588,000    -        -   588,000 
Total of Land at Fair Value      683,000    -     95,000 588,000 

Buildings at Fair Value
Non-Specialised Buildings      181,000    -   181,000 -   
Specialised Buildings   9,298,000    -        -      9,298,000 
Total of Buildings at Fair Value   9,479,000    -   181,000    9,298,000 

Plant and Equipment at Fair Value

Plant, Equipment and Motor Vehicles at Fair Value
Motor Vehicles  32,641    -        -      32,641 
Plant and Equipment

Plant and Non-Medical Equipment  70,591    -        -      70,591 
Computers and Communications  28,714    -        -      28,714 
Furniture and Fittings  17,089    -        -      17,089 

Total Plant, Equipment and Motor Vehicles at  
Fair Value      149,035    -        -   149,035 

Total Medical Equipment at Fair Value  26,956    -        -      26,956 

     10,337,991    -   276,000  10,061,991 

(i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy , see Note 1.
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NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings
Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are valued using the market approach. Under this valuation 
method, the assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which are considered to 
have nominal or no added improvement value.

For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, an independent valuation was performed by independent 
valuers, Victorian Valuer General, to determine the fair value using the market approach. Valuation of the assets was 
determined by analysing comparable sales and allowing for share, size, topography, location and other relevant 
factors specific to the asset being valued. An appropriate rate per square metre has been applied to the subject asset. 
The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2014.

To the extent that non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings do not contain significant, unobservable 
adjustments, these assets are classified as Level 2 under the market approach.

Specialised land and specialised buildings
The market approach is also used for specialised land and specialised buildings although is adjusted for the 
community service obligation (CSO) to reflect the specialised nature of the assets being valued. Specialised assets 
contain significant, unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the market based 
direct comparison approach.
The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to 
the extent that is also equally applicable to market participants. This approach is in light of the highest and best use 
consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that is physically 
possible, legally permissible and financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable 
inputs, specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assets. 
For the health services, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised buildings, 
adjusting for the associated depreciation. As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable   
inputs in nature, specialised buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.
An independent valuation of the Health Service’s specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the 
Valuer-General Victoria. The valuation was performed using the market approach adjusted for CSO. The effective date 
of the valuation is 30 June 2014.

Vehicles
The Health Service acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic life. 
The process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is managed by the Health Service who set relevant 
depreciation rates during use to reflect the consumption of the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of vehicles does not 
differ materially from the carrying value (depreciated cost).

Plant and equipment and Medical Equipment
Plant and equipment is held at carrying value (depreciated cost). When plant and equipment is specialised in use, 
such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to estimate 
the fair value. 
Unless there is market evidence that current replacement costs are significantly different from the original acquisition 
cost, it is considered unlikely that depreciated replacement cost will be materially different from the existing carrying 
value. There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2014. 
For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.
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NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

2015 Land Buildings
 Plant and 

Equipment 
 Medical 

Equipment 

Opening Balance  588,000   9,298,000 149,035    26,956 
Purchases (sales)  -   34,440 100,620    21,229 
Transfers in (out) of Level 3  -    -      -   -   

Gains or losses recognised in net result
 - Depreciation  -   (498,700) (48,817)    (7,918)
 - Impairment  -    -      -   -   
Subtotal  -   (498,700) (48,817)    (7,918)

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
 - Revaluation  -    -      -   -   
Subtotal  -    -      -   -   
Closing Balance  588,000   8,833,740 200,838    40,267 

Unrealised gains/(losses) on non-financial assets
 588,000   8,833,740 200,838    40,267 

Yea & District Memorial Hospital Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2015

(e) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations:

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
Specialised land
Station St, Yea  Market approach  Community Service Obligation (CSO) adjustment 

Specialised buildings
- Main Hospital- Rosebank Hostel & 
Nursing Home - The Grace Bennetts 
Centre
- 41 Station Street, Yea

 Depreciated replacement cost  Direct cost per square metre 

 Useful life of specialised buildings 
Plant and equipment at fair value
- Plant
- Non Medical Equipment
- Computers and Communication
- Furniture and Fittings

 Depreciated replacement cost  Cost per unit 

 Useful life of PPE 
Vehicles 
- Motor Vehicles  Depreciated replacement cost  Cost per unit 

 Useful life of vehicles 
Medical equipment at fair value
- Medical Equipment  Depreciated replacement cost  Cost per unit 

 Useful life of medical equipment 
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NOTE 9: PAYABLES

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 
Current
Contractual
Trade Creditors   143,637 184,194 
Accrued Expenses 51,655 112,070 

  195,292 296,264 
Statutory
GST Payable   942  1,229 
Income In Advance - Commonwealth   4,634  5,804 

  5,576  7,033 
TOTAL CURRENT PAYABLES   200,868 303,297 

TOTAL PAYABLES   200,868 303,297 

(a) Maturity Analysis of Payables
Please refer to note 15(d) for ageing analysis of contractual payables

(b) Nature and Extent of Risk arising from Payables
Please refer to note 15(d) for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables
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NOTE 10: PROVISIONS

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 
Current Provisions
Employee Benefits 
Annual Leave
 - unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months   369,299 321,860 
 - unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months  -   -   

Long Service Leave
 - unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months   201,989 198,953 
 - unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months   104,056 102,490 

Accrued Days Off
 - unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months   3,203  4,295 

Accrued Salaries & Wages
 - unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 76,351   66,525 

  754,898 694,123 
Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs
Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months 61,233   55,168 
Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months 11,079   10,869 

72,312   66,037 
Total Current Provisions   827,210 760,160 

Non-Current Provisions
Employee Benefits   174,231   81,426 
Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs 18,551  8,635 
Total Non Current Provisions   192,782   90,061 

Total Provisions   1,019,992 850,221 

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Current Employee Benefits & related on-costs
Accrued Salaries & Wages 76,351   66,525 
Accrued Days Off   3,609  4,750 
Annual Leave entitlements   408,619 355,478 
Unconditional long service leave entitlements   338,631 333,407 
Non Current Employee Benefits & related on-costs
Conditional long service leave entitlements (present value)   192,782   90,061 
Total Employee Benefits  & Related On-Costs   1,019,992 850,221 

Movement in Long Service Leave:
Balance at start of year   423,471 426,974 
Provisions made during the year
 - Revaluations   5,678 655 
 - Expense recognising employee service   140,354   63,711 
Settlements made during the year   (38,090)  (67,869)
Balance at end of year   531,413 423,471 

Yea & District Memorial Hospital Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2015
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NOTE 11: SUPERANNUATION
Employees of the Health Services are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and the Health Services contributes 
to both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.  The defined benefit plan provides benefits based on years 
of service and final average salary.

The Health Service does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plan because the entity has 
no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay 
superannuation contributions as they fall due.  The Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the States' defined 
benefits liabilities in its disclosure for administered items.

However superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee 
benefits in the comprehensive operating statement of the Health Service.  The name, details and amounts expense in 
relation to the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by the Health Services are as follows:

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 
Defined Benefit Plans:
First State Super 18,615   20,031 
Defined Contribution Plans:
First State Super   277,958 226,891 
Hesta Superannuation 45,017   31,307 
Total   341,591 278,229 

NOTE 12: OTHER LIABILITIES

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 
Current
Monies Held in Trust
Accommodation Bonds (Refundable Entrance Fees)   2,280,485  1,508,941 
Total Current   2,280,485  1,508,941 

Hume Rural Health Alliance 16,277  9,956 
Total Other Liabilities   2,296,762  1,518,897 

Total Monies Held in Trust
Represented by the following assets:
Cash Assets   2,280,485  1,508,941 
Total   2,280,485  1,508,941 
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NOTE 13: EQUITY & RESERVES

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 
(a) Surpluses
Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus (1)
Balance at the Beginning of the Reporting Period   6,947,166  5,521,466 
Increase in the Value of Land  -   234,000 
Increase in the Value of Buildings  -    1,191,700 
Balance at the End of the Reporting Period   6,947,166  6,947,166 

Represented by:
Land   301,090 301,090 
Plant & Equipment   1,142  1,142 
Buildings   6,644,934  6,644,934 
Total   6,947,166  6,947,166 

General Purpose Surplus
Balance at the Beginning of the Reporting Period   3,279,806  3,092,818 
Transfer to and from Accumulated Deficit   196,643 186,988 
Balance at the End of the Reporting Period   3,476,449  3,279,806 

Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus
Balance at the Beginning of the Reporting Period 45,478   45,478 
Balance at the End of the Reporting Period 45,478   45,478 

Total Surpluses 10,469,093   10,272,450 

(b) Contributed Capital
Balance at the Beginning of the Reporting Period   2,447,447  2,447,447 
Balance at the End of the Reporting Period   2,447,447  2,447,447 

(c) Accumulated Surpluses / (Deficit)
Balance at the Beginning of the Reporting Period   974,980  1,333,559 
Net Result for the Year (298,768)   (171,591)
Transfers to and from General Reserves (196,643)   (186,988)
Balance at the End of the Reporting Period   479,569 974,980 

Total Equity At End Of Financial Year 13,396,109   13,694,877 

Y e a  &  D i s t r i c t  M e m o r i a l  H o s p i t a l  -  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 4 / 1 5 63



Yea & District Memorial Hospital Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2015

NOTE 14: RECONCILIATION OF NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR TO NET CASH 
INFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 

Net Result for the Year (298,768)   (171,591)

Depreciation   568,674 622,470 
Hume Rural Health Alliance  (4,301)    (7,282)
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables (102,429) 144,324 
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Benefits   169,771   68,755 
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments 35,273  (38,211)
(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables 39,342  (80,303)

Net Cash Inflow/Outflow from Operating Activities   407,562 538,162 

NOTE 15: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

15(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Yea & District Memorial Hospital's principal financial instruments comprise of:

Cash Assets
Receivables (excluding statutory receivables)
Payables (excluding statutory Payables)
Accommodation Bonds

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis 
of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial 
asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.

The Health Service's main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.  The Health Service 
manages these financial risks in accordance with its financial risk management policy.

The Health Service uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed.  
Primary responsibility for the identification and management of financial risks rests with the financial risk 
management committee of the Health Service.

The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage Yea & District Memorial Hospital's 
financial risks within the government policy parameters.
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Categorisation of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

 Carrying
Amount

2015
$ 

 Carrying
Amount

2014
$ 

Cash and Cash Equivalents   6,649,973  5,573,854 
Receivables   103,353   95,048 
Total Financial Assets   6,753,326  5,668,902 

Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost   2,475,777  1,805,205 
Total Financial Liabilities   2,475,777  1,805,205 

(i) The total amount of financial assets discosed here excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST input tax credit 
recoverable)

(ii) The total amount of financial liabilities disclosed here excludes statutory payables (i.e. Taxes Payable)

(b) Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category

2015
Financial Assets

 Net 
holding 

gain / (loss)  

 Total 
interest 

income / 
(expense)  

 Fee 
income / 

(expense)   Total 
Cash & Cash Equivalents    -   232,679  -   232,679 
Receivables    -      -    -   -   
Available for Sale    -      -    -   -   
Total Financial Assets    -   232,679  -   232,679 

Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost    -      -    -   -   

2014
Financial Assets

 Net 
holding 

gain / (loss)  

 Total 
interest 

income / 
(expense)  

 Fee 
income / 

(expense)   Total 
Cash & Cash Equivalents    -   186,988  -   186,988 
Receivables    -      -    -   -   
Available for Sale    -      -    -   -   
Total Financial Assets    -   186,988  -   186,988 

Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost    -      -    -   -   
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
15(c) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of Yea & District Memorial Hospital which comprise cash 
and deposits and non-statutory receivables.  Yea & District Memorial Hospital's exposure to credit risk arises from 
the potential default of a counter party on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital.  Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular basis.

Credit risk associated with the Yea & District Memorial Hospital's contractual financial assets is minimal because the 
main debtor is the Victorian Government.  For debtors other than the Government, it is Yea & District Memorial 
Hospital's policy to only deal with entities with high credit ratings. Trade and other receivables that are not past due 
nor impaired are considered to be of high quality.

In addition, Yea & District Memorial Hospital does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets and 
mainly obtains contractual financial assets that are on fixed interest, except for cash assets, which are mainly cash at 
bank.  As with the policy for debtors, Yea & District Memorial Hospital's policy is to only deal with banks with high 
credit ratings.

Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that Yea & 
District Memorial Hospital will not be able to collect a receivable.  Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of 
the debtor, default payments, debts which are more than 60 days overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.

Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in 
the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents Yea & District Memorial Hospital's maximum 
exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.

Credit Quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

2015

Government 
Agencies (AAA 

credit rating)
$

Financial 
Institutions (AA 

credit rating)
$

Other
$

Total
$

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,101,000 2,280,000 268,973 6,649,973 
Receivables:

Debtors and Patient Fees -    -     97,362   97,362 
Other Receivables -    -   5,991 5,991 
Total Financial Assets 4,101,000 2,280,000 372,326 6,753,326 

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 4,200,000 1,373,853 5,573,853 
Receivables:

Debtors and Patient Fees - -   77,306   77,306 
Other Receivables -    -     17,742   17,742 

Total Financial Assets - 4,200,000 1,468,901 5,668,901 
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Ageing Analysis of Financial Assets as at 30 June

Past Due but Not Impaired

2015

Carrying 
Amount

$

Not Past 
Due and Not 

Impaired
$

Less than 1 
month

$
1-3 months

$
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,649,973 6,649,973    -      -   
Receivables:

Debtors and Patient Fees   97,362   77,890   14,604 4,868 
Accrued Revenue 5,991 5,991 

Total Financial Assets 6,753,326 6,733,854   14,604 4,868 

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,578,455 5,578,455    -      -   
Receivables:

Debtors and Patient Fees 77,306   61,845   11,596 3,865 
Accrued Revenue   17,742   17,742    -      -   

Total Financial Assets 5,673,503 5,658,042   11,596 3,865 

Contractual financial assets that are either past 
due or impaired

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.  Currently Yea & District 
Memorial Hospital does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements relating to any of its financial 
assets.

There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or 
impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated.  The ageing analysis table above discloses the 
ageing only of contractual financial assets that are past due but not impaired.

15(d) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Yea & District Memorial Hospital would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and 
when they fall due.

Yea & District Memorial Hospital operates under the Government's fair payments policy of settling financial 
obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, making payments within 30 days from the date of 
resolution.

Yea & District Memorial Hospital's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as 
disclosed in the face of the balance sheet.

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Yea & District Memorial Hospital's financial 
liabilities.

For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to individual notes to the financial statements.
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities as at 30 June

Maturity Dates

2015

Carrying
Amount

$

Nominal 
Amount

$

Less than 1 
month

$

3 Months
- 1 Year

$
Financial Liabilities
Payables 195,292    -   160,139   35,153 
Other Financial Liabilities
 - Accommodation Bonds 2,280,485 2,280,485    -      -   
 - Other    -      -      -      -   
Total Financial Liabilities 2,475,777 2,280,485 160,139   35,153 

2014
Financial Liabilities
Payables 296,264    -   242,936   53,328 
Other Financial Liabilities
 - Accommodation Bonds 1,508,941 1,508,941 
 - Other    -      -      -      -   
Total Financial Liabilities 1,805,205 1,508,941 242,936   53,328 

Accommodation Bonds do not have maturity dates as they are dependant upon Residents departing the facility.

15(e) Market Risk

Yea & District Memorial Hospital's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only 
insignificant exposure to  foreign currency and other price risks.  Objectives, policies and processes used to manage 
each of these risks are disclosed in the paragraph below.

Currency Risk
Yea & District Memorial Hospital is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk through its payables relating 
to purchases of supplies and consumables from overseas.  This is because of a limited amount of purchases 
denominated in foreign currencies  and a short time-frame between commitment and settlement.

Interest Rate Risk
Minimisation of risk is achieved by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments. 

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in the market interest rates. The Health Service has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risks 
through its cash and deposits and term deposits that are at floating rate.

The Health Service manages this risk by mainly undertaking fixed rate or non-interest bearing financial instruments 
with relatively even maturity profiles, with only insignificant amounts of financial instruments at floating rate.  
Management has concluded for cash at bank, as financial assets that can be left at floating rate without necessarily 
exposing the Health Service to significant bad risk, management monitors movement in interest rates on a daily 
basis.
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Interest Rate Exposure of Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 30 June

Interest Rate Exposure

2015

Weighted
Average
Effective 
Interest

Rate (%)

Carrying
Amount

$

Fixed
Interest

Rate
$

Variable
Interest

Rate
$

Non   
Interest
Bearing 

 $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.18% 6,649,973 6,381,000  268,573    400 
Receivables:

Patient Fees and Trade Debtors  -   97,362  -    -   97,362 
Other Receivables  -      5,991  -    -      5,991 

Total Financial Assets 6,753,326 6,381,000  268,573  103,753 
Financial Liabilities
Payables  -    195,292  -    -    195,292 
Other Financial Liabilities
 - Accommodation Bonds  -   2,280,485  -    -   2,280,485 
Total Financial Liabilities 2,475,777  -    -   2,475,777 

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.96% 5,573,854 4,200,000 1,373,454    400 
Receivables:

Patient Fees and Trade Debtors 77,306  -    -   77,306 
Other Receivables 17,742  -   17,742 

Total Financial Assets 5,668,902 4,200,000 1,373,454 95,448 

Financial Liabilities
Payables  -    296,264  -    -    296,264 
Other Financial Liabilities
 - Accommodation Bonds  -   1,508,941  -    -   1,508,941 
 - Other  -    -    -    -    -   
Total Financial Liabilities 1,805,205  -    -   1,805,205 

(e) Market Risk (continued)

Sensitivity Disclosure Analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and 
experience of the financial markets,
Yea & District Memorial Hospital believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months 
(Base rates are sourced from the Reserve Bank of Australia)
 - A Shift of +1% and -1% in markets interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 4%;
 - A parallel shift of +1% and -1% in inflation rate from year-end rates of 2%;
The following table discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instrument 
held by Yea & District Memorial Hospital at year end as presented to key management personnel, if changes in the 
relevant risk occur.
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Interest Rate Risk

-1% +1%

2015

Carrying
Amount

$
Profit

$
Equity

$
Profit

$
Equity

$
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 6,649,573   (66,496)   (66,496) 66,496 66,496 
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors 97,362  -    -    -    -   
 - Other Receivables    5,991  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities
Payables  195,292  -    -    -    -   
Other Financial Liablities
 - Accomodation Bonds 2,280,485  -    -    -    -   
 - Other  -    -    -    -    -   

  (66,496)   (66,496) 66,496 66,496 

2014
Financial Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 5,573,454   (55,781)   (55,781) 55,781 55,781 
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors  77,306  -    -    -    -   
 - Other Receivables 17,742  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities
Payables  296,264  -    -    -    -   
Other Financial Liablities
 - Accomodation Bonds 1,508,941 
 - Other  -    -    -    -    -   

  (55,781)   (55,781) 55,781 55,781 
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
15(f) Fair Value
The fair values and net fair values of financial instrument assets and liabilities are determined as follows:

*Level 1 - the fair value of financial instrument assets and liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded in 
active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices;

* Level 2 - the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the financial 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 - the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted 
cash flow analysis using unobservable market inputs.

The Health Services considers that the carrying amount of financial instrument assets and liabilities recorded in the 
financial statements to be a fair approximation of their fair values, because of the short-term nature of the financial 
instruments and the expectation that they will be paid in full.

The following table shows that the fair values of most of the contractual financial assets and liabilities are the same 
as the carrying amounts.

Comparison between carrying amount and fair value

2015

Carrying 
Amount

2015
$

Fair Value
2015

$

Carrying 
Amount

2014
$

Fair Value
2014

$
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents  6,649,973  6,649,973  5,573,854  5,573,854 
Receivables:

Patient Fees and Trade Debtors    97,362    97,362 77,306 77,306 
Other Receivables  5,991  5,991    17,742    17,742 

Total Financial Assets  6,753,326  6,753,326  5,668,902  5,668,902 

Financial Liabilities
Payables 195,292 195,292 296,264 296,264 
Other Financial Liabilities
 - Accommodation Bonds  2,280,485  2,280,485  1,508,941  1,508,941 
 - Other -   -   -   -   
Total Financial Liabilities  2,475,777  2,475,777  1,805,205  1,805,205 

NOTE 16: CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Hospital had no operating or capital commitments at 30 June 2015 (2014: $Nil)

NOTE 17: CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
There are no known contingent liabilities or assets at the date of this report.
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NOTE 18: SEGMENT REPORTING
Residential Aged

Care Services 
Other HSA &
H&CI Services

2015
$

2014
$

2015
$

2014
$

Total
2015

$

Total
2014

$

REVENUE
Total Revenue (External 
Segment Revenue) 1,710,583   1,561,294   3,422,412   3,329,681   5,132,995 4,890,975 

EXPENSES
Total Expenses (External 
Segment Expenses) (2,057,506) (1,864,360) (3,606,936) (3,385,194) (5,664,442) (5,249,554)

Net Result From 
Ordinary Activities  (346,923) (303,066) (184,524)   (55,513) (531,447)  (358,579)

Interest Income    -    -    232,679  186,988  232,679    186,988 
Net Result for Year  (346,923) (303,066) 48,156  131,475 (298,767)  (171,591)

Other Information
Segment Assets  48,513 50,490 16,865,218 16,316,802 16,913,731  16,367,292 
Total Assets  48,513 50,490 16,865,218 16,316,802 16,913,731  16,367,292 

Segment Liabilities 3,242   5,804   3,514,380   2,666,611   3,517,622 2,672,415 
Total Liabilities 3,242   5,804   3,514,380   2,666,611   3,517,622 2,672,415 

The major services from which the above segments derive income are:

Residential Aged Care Services

Other HSA & H&CI Services - Acute and Community Services

Pricing between inter-segments is at cost

Yea & District Memorial Hospital operates predominantly in Yea, Victoria. More than 90% of revenue, net surplus 
from ordinary activities and segment assets relate to operations in Yea, Victoria. 
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NOTE 19: INVESTMENTS IN JOINT OPERATION

 Ownership Interest 
Hume Rural Health Alliance  2015  2014 

1.82% 1.80%
The Hume Rural Health Alliance provides information technology services to the 
Department of Health and Human Services Hume Region agencies

The amonts included in the financial statements are as follows:

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 
Share of Assets Included in Other Assets (Refer Note 7)
Cash at Bank 7,494    4,601 
Receivables     35,746 33,611 
Prepayments 1,153 490 
Plant, Equipment and Intangibles     11,892    6,961 
Total Share of Assets     56,285 45,663 

Share of Liabilities Included in Other Liabilities (Refer Note 12) 
Payables     16,277    9,956 
Total Share of Liabilities     16,277    9,956 

Net Assets     40,008 35,707 

Total Income from Transactions   163,247     116,130 
Total Expenses   158,946     108,848 
Net Result 4,301    7,282 

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
The jointly controlled operation has no known contingent liabilities or capital 
commitments

Yea & District Memorial Hospital's financial accounts for year ending 30th June 2015 
have been based on the unaudited accounts of Hume Rural Health Alliance
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NOTE 20: RESPONSIBLE PERSON RELATED DISCLOSURES
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 
1994, the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

 Period 
Responsible Ministers:  From  To 
The Honourable Jill Hennessy MLA, Minster for Health 4/12/2014 30/06/2015
The Honourable Martin Foley MLA, Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing 4/12/2014 30/06/2015
The Honourable Martin Foley MLA, Minister for Mental Health 4/12/2014 30/06/2015
The Honourable David Davis, MLC, Minister for Health and Ageing 1/07/2014 3/12/2014
The Honourable Mary Wooldridge, MLA, Minister for Mental Health 1/07/2014 3/12/2014
The Honourable Mary Wooldridge MLA, Minister for Community Services 1/07/2014 3/12/2014
The Honourable Mary Wooldridge MLA, Minister for Disability Services and Reform 1/07/2014 3/12/2014

Board of Directors
Ms K Chadband 1/07/2014 25/09/2014
Mrs S Neil 1/07/2014 22/05/2015
Mr G Charles 1/07/2014 30/06/2015
Ms K Michaels 1/07/2014 30/06/2015
Ms J Keast 1/07/2014 30/06/2015
Ms C Kellett 1/07/2014 30/06/2015
Mrs L Southurst 1/07/2014 30/06/2015
Mr K Anderson 1/07/2014 30/06/2015

Accountable Officer
Mr D Fraser 1/07/2014 30/06/2015

Remuneration of Responsible Persons

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 

 Nil  Nil 

Other Transaction of Responsible Persons and their Related Parties

There were no transactions with Responsible Persons and their related parties during the current year or in the 
previous year other than:

Ms K Chadband is a part owner of Yea Dairy Foods which supplies dairy and food products to the Yea and District 
Memorial Hospital on normal terms and conditions. The  aggregate value of the services was $26,768 (2014 
$24,262)

Mrs L Southurst is the Branch Manager of Yea Bendigo Bank which held term deposits for the Yea and District 
Memorial Hospital. The value of the term deposits were $1,380,000 (2014 $1,000,000)
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NOTE: 21 EXECUTIVE OFFICER DISCLOSURE

The CEO is employed by Goulburn Valley Health (GVH) and information relating to his remuneration is disclosed in 
the financial statements of GVH.  During the year Yea & District Memorial Hospital paid $95,952 (2014 $92,728) to 
GVH in relation to the service provided by the CEO and other Administration staff.

NOTE 22: REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

 Total
2015

$ 

 Total
2014

$ 
Victorian Auditor-General's Office
Audit or review of financial statement 10,500   10,000 
Other non-audit services  -   -   

10,500   10,000 

NOTE 23: EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
There are no known significant financial events after balance date.
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The following is for information purposes and is not part of the audited financial statements.

APPENDIX A:
Alternative presentation of comprehensive operating statement

2015
$'000

2014
$'000

Interest 233 187 
Sales of Goods and Services 741 633 
Grants 4,060 3,905 
Other Income 331 352 

Total Revenue 5,365 5,077 

Employee Expenses 3,759 3,454 
Depreciation 569 622 
Interest Expense - - 
Grants  and Other Transfers - - 
Other Operating Expenses 1,336 1,173 

Total Expenses 5,664 5,249 

Net Result from transactions - Net Operating Balance  (299)  (172)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net result
Changes to financial assets available-for-sale revaluation surplus - 1,426 

Total other economic flows included in net result - 1,426 

Net result  (299) 1,254 

This alternate presentation reflects the format required for reporting to the 
Department of Treasury and Finance
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